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DIRECTORS' REPORT
The Directors present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006
Principal activity and review of the business

The principal activities of EDF Energy plc and subsidiaries {together the "Group” or "EDF Energy”) during
the year continued to be the provision and supply of electricity and gas to commercial, residential and
industrial customers, the provision of services relating to energy, including purchasing of fuel for power
generation, the generation of electnicity and the operation of public and private distnbution networks The
Group will continue in this activity for the foreseeable future

Results and dividends

The profit for the year, before taxation, amounted to £420 8m (2005 £424 Om) and after taxation and
contributions from associates to £342 1m (2005 £293 Om) Dwidends paid dunng the year amounted to
£105 0m {2005 £96 Om)

EDF Energy plc and subsidiaries operates through four main divisions or branches These are Customer
and Energy, Regulated Networks, Other Networks and Corporate The principal activites of these
branches continued to be,

« Customer and Energy, the provision and supply of electnicity and gas to commercial, residential
and industrial customers, the provision of services refating to energy, including purchasing of fuel
for power generation and the generation of electricity

* Regulated Networks, the operation of public distribution networks

» Other Networks, the operation of private distnbution networks and PFI contracts

The Group will continue In these activities for the foreseeable future

A summary of the key financial results are set out in the table below and are discussed in this section
Further detall of the results of the segments can be found in the segmental reporting note (note 5)

Revenue Operating Profit
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Customer and Energy 4,639.9 3,674 8 54.1 186 3
Regulated Networks 9820 8808 484 1 4150
Other Networks 369.0 2957 9.4 (49
Other and eliminations (302.0) (273 8) 46.1 213
Group 5,688.9 45775 5937 6177

Customer and Energy

The Group has continued to grow its customer base despite a highly competitive market, increasing its
customer product numbers by 9% to 5,465,000, a net gan of 445,000 in the year In June 2006 EDF
Energy launched its new brand logo and began to use the EDF Energy brand across all of its customer
product accounts, replacing the London Energy, Seeboard Energy and SWEB Energy names it had
previously used regiohally
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

2006 was the warmest year on record and the weather included some notable volatility At tmes this
volatiity had a dramatic effect on the customer demand for electricity and gas and on wholesale energy
prices

Due to this volatility, the operating profit in Customer and Energy fell from £186 3m to £54 1m in 2006

A significant part of this decrease was due to far value adjustments and certain re-measurements when
applying International Accounting Standards 32 and 39 (*IAS32/39") to the Group’s portfolio of power, gas
and other contracts Excluding the effect of IAS 32/39 operating profit fell from £150 9m to £117 Om (a
decrease of 22 5%)

The branch 1s expected to continue to experience a tough environment in 2007, with competition as high
as ever

Regulated Networks

Regulated Networks maintain and operate public electricity netwerks within the South East, East and
London areas The networks are highly regulated by the Office for Gas and Electricity Markets
{("OFGEM") Through the Distnbution Price Control Mecharnism OFGEM sets the tanffs that are allowed
to be charged duning the penod that a license i1s granted

In 2006 Regulated Networks were able to increase profits due to allowable tanff increases Profit
increased from £4150m to £484 1m  Profit was also increased due to greater effictency within the
branch and a concerted effort to reduce operating costs

Regulated Networks have to ensure there I1s a significant amount of investment in the network within the
year Capital expenditure within the branch fell from £532 7m to £500 6m withun the year

Other Networks

Other Networks construct, maintain and operate a number of pnvate networks including Heathrow
Terminal five and the Channel Tunnel Rail Link These are long term contracts which are progressing at
a farrly constant rate year on year

Also accounted for within Other Networks 1s the Group's share of the results of Metronet BCV Limited and
Metronet SSL Limited (together “Metronet”) Metronet 1s an associate which 1s responsible for the
upgrade of the London Underground Network The Group has a 20% share in the company

During 2006, Trans4m Limited undertook a detalled cost review which indicated that the Penod One
(2003 - 2010) contract costs could be significantly higher than onginally anticipated Under the contract,
the project sponsors are able to recover part or whole of cost overruns from the client, London
Underground Limited, subject to the arbiter, whose duties are defined by contract, deeming through an
Extraordinary Review of the contract that the work camed out by Metronet has been done in an economic
and efficient manner

To date, the mitial view of the arbiter on the first three years of the contracts indicates that Metronet 1s
likely to be considered non-economic and inefficient 1n some areas of the contract

To reflect the significant uncertainty at 31 December 2006 over the contract and the value of the equily
invested, an impairment of £50m has been recorded agamnst the carrying value of the investment in
Metronet held by EDF Energy The provision 1s accounted for within the loss from associates (see note
22)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT Continued

Long term strategy and business objectives

In 2004 the Group launched its goals to achieve its five ambitions for the future Durnng 2005 these
ambitions were allocated Key Performance Indicators ("KPI"s) to measure how the Group was performing
against the ambition The ambitions were intially to run until 2007 at which point they will be reviewed
and updated The five key ambitions of the Group are

o  “We want to care more for our customers and continually improve customer experience”
o Measured through independent monthly surveys giving annual average % of our major
business customers and mass market customers (across disinbution, supply and
contracting businesses) who are satisfied with the service they receive

* “We want to be known as a learning business and a great place to work so that our employees
can be proud of their company”
o Measured through an independent annual survey giving % of our employees satisfied
with EDF Energy as an employer

*« “We want to meet our shareholders expectations and grow the value of our existing business”
o The measures of this are focused on net income and earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)

+ “We want to be a safe and responsible company regarding our people, the environment, and the
community we serve”
o Measured through an internal index focusing on our effectiveness n managing the
identification and control of nsk training, involvement and audtt, incidents, hazards and
actions This 1s known as the Health and Safety Executive (*“HSE") management index

* “We want to be recognised as a leading and respected point of reference on matters concerning
our business”
o This 1s to be assessed through the Group’s position on the Business in the Community
("BITC") Corporate Responsibility index which 15 an independent assessment by
Business in the Community of our ranking in ther Corporate Responsibility Index of
participating UK companies

The results for 2006 and 2005 were,

Movement
< 2008 2005
Ambition Measure Actual Actual yzaera tr)n
Mass Market 74 4% n/a nia
Care more for our customers Major Business 64 3% na n/a
Great place to work Employee Satisfaction 732% 69 4% 3 8%
Net Income £342 1m | £293 Om £49 1m
Shareholders expectation  "ggirp £8919m | £907 9m | £(16 O)m
Safe and Responstible HSE management index 77 3% 62 9% 14 4%
Point of Reference E\l(;r:xCorporate Responsibility 2Gth 49th 20 places

Future Developments

At the end of 2006 the Group announced that the Other Networks Branch would be brought together with
the Regulated Networks business The Directors expect to see synergies from this conselidation of the
business
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DIRECTORS' REPORT Continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The following reflects the key nsks facing the Group They can be split into two main areas, margin risk
and the nsks ansing as a result of the Group’s use of financial instruments This financial instrument nisk
can be further divided into nisk from interest rates, foreign currency and commodity risk A discussion of
the risks together with a summary of the Group’s approach to managing those nsks 1s as follows The
accounting basis for dealing with these nsks 1s discussed in the accounting policy section below

Margin nisk

Margin price nsk anises from the requirement to purchase EU carbon emissions certificates, and from
forecast customer demand for gas, coal and electncity Due to the vertically integrated nature of the
Group the electnicity procured from the generation business provides a natural hedge for the electncity
demand from the retal business Any residual exposure to movements in the price of electricity, gas or
coal 1s mitigated by entering into contracts and hedging options on the forward markets Risk of loss I15
monitored through establishment of approved counterparties and maximum counterparty limits and
minmum credit ratings

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings and deposits 1s managed principally
through the use of fixed rate debt instruments and swap agreements The Group's policy is to use
dernvatives to reduce exposure to short term interest rates and not for speculative purposes

Foreign currency risk

The Group's present exposure to foreign currency risk 1s hmited to the currency exposure on the service
of interest and capital on US dollar and euro denominated debt, and the purchase of energy and EU
emissions certificates The Group policy 1s to hedge/fix known currency exposures as they anse The US
dollar and euro currency swap agreements fix the sterling equivalent that will be required to service the
interest and capital repayments of foreign currency debt instruments The Group enters into forward
currency purchase contracts to fix the Sterling price for future foreign currency denominated transactions

Credit risk

The Group's credit nsk 1s primarly attributable to its trade recewvables and amounts recoverable under
long term contracts The credit nisk on hquid funds and denvative financial instruments 1s himited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
external counterparties and customers Due to the nature of the Group's trading with other EDF Group
companies in Europe, there are large trading balances with other Group companies, however these are
not considered to be a nsk because of parent company financial support
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT Continued

Directors and their interests

Directors who held office during the year and subsequently were as follows

Daniel Camus Chairman

Vincent de Rivaz Chief Executive
Humphrey A E Cadoux-Hudson Chief Financial Officer
Yann Laroche

Gerard Menjon
Didier Calvez

Vincent de Rivaz and Humphrey Cadoux-Hudson are employed by and have service contracts with the
Company The remaining Directors are employed by and have service contracts with the uthmate parent
company Electricité de France S A

There are no contracts of significance during or at the end of the financial year in which a Director of the
Company has a matenal interest

None of the Directors who held office at the end of the financial year had any interest in the shares of the
Company or any Group company that 1s required to be disclosed n accordance with the Companies Act
1985

There were qualifying third party indemnity provisions in place for the benefit of one or more Directors of
the Company during the financial year or at the date of approval of the financial statements

Political and charitable contributions

Dunng the year, the Group made varnious charntable contributions totalhng £2,370,505 (2005 £615,916 )
and no political contributions (20056 £nil)

Creditors payment policy

The Group’s current policy concerning the payment of its trade creditors and other suppliers is to

» seftle the terms of payment with those creditors/suppliers when agreeing the terms of each
transaction,

+ ensure that those creditors/suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment by inclusion of the
relevant terms in contracts, and

» pay In accordance with its contractual and other legal obligations

The payment policy applies to all payments to creditors/suppliers for revenue and capital supplies of
goods and services withqut exception At 31 December 2006, the Group had an average of 58 days
(2005 74 days) purchases cutstanding in its trade creditors

Employee involvement

The Group keeps its employees informed on matters affecting them This 1s camed out in @ number of
ways, Including formal and wnformal brefings, departmental meetings and regular reports In staff
newsletters and on the Group intranet
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DIRECTORS' REPORT Continued
Equal opportunities

The Group 1s fully committed to ensuring that all current and potentia! future employees and customers
are treated farrly and equally, regardless of their gender, mantal status, disability, race, colour, nationalty
or ethnic ongin The Group provides equal opportunities for employment, traning and development,
having regard to particular aptitudes and abilities In the event of employees becoming disabled during
employment, where possible, assistance and retraining 1s given so that they may attain positions
compatible with their ability

Going concern

After making enquiries, the Directors have formed a judgement, at the time of approving the financial
statements, that there i1s a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue In
operationa! existence for the foreseeable future For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements

Auditors
Each of the persons who 1s a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

1 so far as the Director is aware, there I1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's
auditors are unaware, and

2 the Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are
aware of that inforrmation

This confirmation 15 given and should be interpreted in accerdance with the provisions of s234ZA of the
Compamies Act 1985

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed therr willingness to continue in office as auditors and a resolution
to reappotnt them will be proposed at the ferthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

S

Thibaut Brac de a Pernere
Company Secretary
24 May 2007
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulation The Directors are required by IAS Regulation to prepare financial
statements for the Group in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and have
also elected to prepare financial statements for the Company in accordance with IFRS Company law
requires the Directors to prepare such financial statements in accordance with IFRS, the Companies Act
1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial
year the Group's financial posttion, financial performance and cash flows This requires the faithful
representation of the effects of transactions, other events and condiions 1 accordance with the defintion
and recognition criteria for assets, habilities, income and expenses set out in the International Accounting
Standards Board's “Framework for the preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements” In virtually
all circumstances, a far presentation will be achieved by compliance with all apphcable International
Financial Reporting Standards Directors are also required to

s properly select and apply accounting policies,

¢ present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, rehable,
comparable and understandable information, and

» provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS 1s insufficient
to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on
the entity’s financial position and financial performance

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Group, for safeguarding the assets, for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties and for the preparation
of a Directors’ report which complies with the requirements of the Companies Act 1985
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

EDF Energy plc 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of EDF SA EDF SA, which, being a company listed on the
Parns Stock Exchange, 1s required to comply with the Lol de Sécunté Financiere (LSF) The LSF requires
the Chairman of EDF SA to provide in the annual report a description of the internal controls 1n the EDF
Group and to provide an opinion on therr effectiveness

The Group has adoptef:l the EDF Group Internal Controf and Audit Policy which provides for

Management responsibility for Internal Control,

a requirement to describe the systems of Internal Control,

Management to provide assurances on the effectiveness of the systems of Internal Control,

the requirement for remediation plans where the systems of Internal Control are assessed as not
providing the assurances required, and

¢ independent verification of the assurance process

The Corporate Risk Assurance Policy, implemented in 2003, i1s a statement of what the organisation 1s
seeking to achieve by actively managing nsk It defines a governance structure together with roles and
responsibilities that will allow the Group to

» promptly and continuously identify, evaluate, effectively control and report new and continuing
rnsks that are significant at Group fevel,

« promote a consistent and comprehensive approach to Risk Management throughout EDF
Energy, with strong ownership at Branch level,

+ maintain a record of significant rnisks faced by each Branch and Corporate Function, together with
remedial action plans and progress reports consolidated into a nisk register for EDF Energy, and

» promote the development of risk control as a core business process and to provide a framework
and awareness for exploting opportunities, and containing or preventing loss

Risk Management guidelines have alse been developed to provide a standard approach to Risk
Management and to facilitate a meaningful consolidation of Group risks

Internal Control

The Board (through the Audit Committee) i1s responsible for the Group's system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness However, such a system can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss, as it 1s designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives

During 2006 the Board conducted a self assessment of the systems of Internal Control iIn EDF Energy
This assessment enabled the Board to describe the systems of internal control of the UK entities and to
identify areas where attention 1s required to improve business performance and effectiveness

The key elements of the Group's system of internal control include

Control environment

The Group 15 committed to the highest standard of business conduct The Group s appropnately
structured according to business areas This allows for effective operations to achieve the Group's
objectives Lines of responsibility and levels of authonty are formally documented The Group Executive
Committee comprises the Group Chief Executive Officer, Branch Chief Operating Officers and Corporate
Directors This Committee defines authonties given to individual officers of the Group The Committee
also approves the five year medium term plan and budget which 1s the basis on which the objectives of
the business are agreed and delegated
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Risk identification and control

The Director of Governance and Group Synergies Is responsible for maintaining an oversight of Group
systems of Internal Control and nsk management, werking closely with the branches and other corporate
functions to ensure that therr activiies complement each other, and enhance the overall Group position
The objectives are to provide assurance that management of nisks 1s effectively managed and embedded
in day to day activities, that nsk management actwvity has sufficient visibility and that there 1s transparency
around decision making processes

The relationship between Internal Audit and Risk Assurance requires Risk Assurance to be primarily
responsible for ensuning the identification of nsks and therr mitigation and Internal Audit to be
independently responsible for review of the mechamisms that provide assurance

Specific Risk Management Committees have been established where required and operate to address
specific nsk areas including energy trading nsk and health and safety

Control activities

Control procedures have been implemented throughout the Group and are designed to ensure complete
and accurate accounting for financial transactions, to safeguard the Group's assets and to ensure
compliance with laws and regulations There are control processes to establish budgets, financial and
service targets in each business umit/subsidiary against which performance 1s monitored in detail and
agreements under which relationships with partners in joint ventures are controlled High level reporting
I made by business units/subsidiaries and functional heads at corporate level to the Group Executive
Committee and the Board This Committee approves individual projects within the medium term plan and
approves the award of contracts either directly or by delegated authonty within agreed Iimits

Information and communication

The performance management cycle 15 based upen a balanced scorecard approach, the scorecard
translates the company ambitions into key measures required to achieve sustainable value Company
measures are cascaded to Branch and Corporate functions and each branch translates the branch
measures into team or sub-branch measures with appropriate tracking mechamisms  For each
performance measure there are agreed targets

Staff policies are in place to ensure that employees are competent, have appropriate skills and receive
information required to effectively perform ther roles The Group's Intranet 1s widely used to
communicate information to staff

Internal communication to employees concerning employee duties are communicated through job
descriptions, their personal performance 1s evaluated through the Coaching for Performance Each
employee's bonus I1s a reflection of both the company and therr own department’s performance, and I1s
provided to employees via the Intranet on a monthly basis

Monitoring and corrective action

Group performance 1s continually monitored Branch Chief Operating Officers and Managing Directors
report regularly on operating performance

The Audit Committee 1s a sub-committee of the Board with advisory responsibility for 1ssues related to
Corporate Governance, nisk and internal contro! This covers all aspects of risk management and the
system of internal control including both financial, operational and comphance controls The scope
includes all EDF Energy plc companies but ulimate responsibility remains with the Board Membership
includes appointed non-executive representatives representing finance, nisk and audit from EDF S A

10
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE continued

The Group Executive Committee and Audit Commuttee receive reports of key nsks from the business
units These reports include for each nsk an assessment of the likelihood of the nisk occurnng and the
associated impact The nsk reports incfude the key mitigating controls and an assessment by the
business units of therr adequacy Where appropriate businesses are required to identify the actions
required and ensure that the nsks are adequately managed

Internal Audit reviews the operation of internal controls using a nisk-based methodology and reports
periodically to the Group Executive Committee and half yearly to the Audit Committee Assignments are
determined by reference to the nisk framework and discussions with sentor management including
members of the Group Executive Committee

Effectiveness review

The Group 1s continuously making improvements to the system of internal control The revised EDF
Group Internal Control and Audit Policy requires, inter alia, that as from the end of 2007 the Chief
Executive Officer of EDF Energy provides an annual report to the Chairman of EDF SA of the quality of
the internal control system

As a result of the 2006 self assessment of the systems of Internal Control in EDF Energy, areas where
attention 1s required to improve business performance and effectiveness were 1dentified A programme of
work 1s underway to bring about these improvements

The relationship between Internal Audit and Management requires Management to be pnmarily
responsible for ensuring that the systems of internaf control are implemented and operated to such an
extent as to provide reasonable assurance that the objectives of the business will be met or that the risks
or threats to the business are mitigated Internal Audit 1s independently responsible for review of the
mechanisms that provide assurance and for providing advice and gurdance to management on the
appropnateness of Internal Control mechanisms and systems

Material weaknesses

Significant weaknesses n internal confrol are reported to the Group Executve Committee and, if
appropriate, to the Audit Committee
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EDF ENERGY PLC

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements {the "financial statements”) of EDF
Energy plc for the year ended 31 December 2006 which comprise the Group Income Statement, the
Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Group and Parent Company Cash Fiow Statements,
the Group and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 45 These
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

This report 1s made solely to the Company’'s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opintons
we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Financial Reporiing Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union are set out in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and have
been praperly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation We also report to you whether in our opinion the information
given In the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the financial statements

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has net kept proper accounting records, i we
have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or If information specified
by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions i1s nct disclosed

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as descrnibed in the contenis section and
consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited financial statements We consider the implications for
our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or materal inconsistenctes with the
financial staternents OQur responsibiiies do not extend to any further information outside the Annual
Report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accerdance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland) 1ssued
by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures In the financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and Company's circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary In order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty
or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information
in the financial statements

12
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EDF ENERGY PLC Continued
Opinion
In our cpinion

. the group financial statements give a true and fair view, In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, of the state of the group's affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of its profit for
the year then ended,

. the parent company financial statements give a true and far view, in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 1985, of the state of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2006,

. the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, and
. the information given in the Directors' Report I1s consistent with the financial statements

Delowte. £ Towa o f

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

24 May 2007
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

EDF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2006

Restated
2006 2005
Notes £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 6 5,688.9 45775
Fuel and energy purchases 8 (3,343.3) {2,478 9)
(Losses)/gains on denvative contracts 7 (62.9) 354
Gross margin 2,282.7 21340
Other operating expenses {1,036.0) {880 9)
Other operating income 6 22.7 371
Personnel expenses 10 (377.5) (382 3)
Profit before depreciation, amortisation, tax and finance costs 891.9 907 9
Depreciation and amortisation 7 (298 2) (290 2)
Operating profit 5937 6177
Investment revenue 6, 12 73.4 548
Finance costs 13 (246.3) (248 5)
Profit before taxation 420.8 424 0
Taxation 14 {58.1) {154 6)
Profit after taxation 362.7 269 4
Share of (losses)/profits of asscciates 22 (20 6) 236
Profit for the financial year 3421 2930
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 40 341.9 2028
Minonty interests 35 0.2 02

342.1 2930

14




BALANCE SHEETS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2006

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

Group Company
Restated
2006 2005 2006 2005
Notes £m £m £m £m
Non-current
Gooawill 16 1,260.8 1,257 3 0.6 -
Other intangible assets 18 273.7 1745 176.3 1280
Property, plant and equipment 19 6,750.3 641567 45.0 426
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 21 - - 2,416.1 2,298 1
Investments in associates 22 52.9 555 - -
Long term recevables 24 26.1 156 2.5 38
Denvatives and other financial
instruments 32 87.4 248 7 86.5 2487
Finance lease recewvables 25 332.0 299 2 - -
Deferred tax asset 34 - - 244.8 -
8,783.2 84665 2,971.8 2,7222
Current assets
Inventories 26 275.7 148 3 209.3 1045
Trade and other receivables 27 1,695.0 1,3617 1,9943 806 2
Cash and cash equivalents 29 166.3 166 1 - 86
Denvatives and other financial
instruments 32 254.7 3252 254.7 3252
Finance lease receivables 25 47.3 44 3 - -
2,439 0 20456 2,458.3 1,244 5
Non-current assets classified as held for
sale 20 21 136 - 36
Total assets 11,2243 10,6257 5,4301 39703
Current habilities
Current tax liabilities (37.1) (22 5) - -
Obligations under finance lease 36 (12.5) (11 5) - -
Interest beanng habilities 31 {1,706.5) {1,473 4) (1,709.7) (670 8)
Cenvatives and other financial
instruments 32 (839.9) (74 0) (838 0) (55 6)
Short term provisions 33 (237.8) {1585 4) {12.5) (16 0)
Other habilities 30 {1,700.8) (1,4320) (1,327.2) (947 0)
{4,534.6) (3,168 8) (3,887.4) (1,6894)
Non-current liabilities
Obhgations under finance lease 36 (323.7) (337 7) - -
Interest bearing abilities 31 (2,199.1) (2,225 0) (336.9) (343 8)
Deferred tax liability 34 (646.8) (946 9) - (133 0)
Long term provisions 33 (75.4) (1107) (2.6) {4 5)
Post employment benefits provision 43 (267.2) (314 5) (17.1) (19 4)
Other habilities 30 {1,202.3) (1,100 9) - -
Denvatives and other financial
instruments 32 {328.0) (86 5)  (295.6) (72 4)
(5,032 5) {5,132 2) {652 2) (572 9)
Total habilties (9,567.1) {8,3010) (4,539.6) (2,2623)

Net assets

1,657.2 22247 890.5 1,708 0
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BALANCE SHEETS continued
AT 31 DECEMBER 2006

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

GROUP COMPANY
Restated
2006 2005 2006 2005

Notes £m Em £m £m
Equity
Share capital 38 1,296.6 1,296 6 1,296.6 1,296 6
Share premium account 39 13.9 139 13.9 139
Capital reserves 39 216 216 131 131
Hedging reserve 41 (545.1) 2596 {528.4) 2898
Retained earnings 40 867.7 6308 95.3 948
Equity attributable to equity holders of the 1,654 7 22225 890.5 1,708 0
parent
Minority interest 35 2.5 22 - -
Total equity 1,657.2 22247 890.5 1,708 0
The accounts on pages 14 to 81 were approved by the Board of Directors on 9\4"“'\ fYY)J::') m

and were signed on its behalf by

Vincent de Rivaz
Director

ViGN

Humphrey A E Cadoux-Hudson
Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Net cash from operating activities

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

GROUP COMPANY
Restated
2006 2005 2006 2005
Notes £m £m £Em £m
42 641.2 5238 (908.5) (84 1)

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

(616.3) (626 8) (12.2) (24 4)

Purchase of intangible assets {25.5) - 29) -
Receipts of customer contnbution 1376 1393 - -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 36.4 341 271 255
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets - - 46.3 -
Payments to increase share of associates (11.9) (14 7) - -
Increase in long term receivables (10.5) - 1.3 -
Interest element of finance lease rental payments (22.1) {232) - -
Dividends received from investments - - 30.0 206 0
Interest receved 46.4 427 93.6 790
Change In financial asset {35.8) {397) - -
Net cash {used in}/from investing activities {501.7) (488 3) 183.2 286 1

Financing activities

Dwidends paid to equity holders of the parent
Repayment of cbligations under finance leases
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Issuance of intra-group loans

Interest paid

(105.0) (960)  (105.0) (96 0)
(13.0)  (123) . A
4730 4852 548.8 287 1

(258.3) (216 0) - -

- - (118.0) -

(236.0) (2200)  (99.2) (78 0)

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

(139.3)  (591)  226.6 113 1
0.2 (236) (498.7) 3151

1661 1897 (157)  (3308)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

29, 31 166.3 166 1 (514.4) (157)
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3t DECEMBER 2006

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share Share Capital Hedging Retained Minonty Total
Capital Premium  Reserves Reserve  Earmings Interest equity
£m £m £m £m Em Em £m

At 1 January 2005 1,296.6 13.8 11.0 {4.4) 4131 20 1,732.2
Adoption of IFRIC4 - - - - 209 - 209
Restated at1 1,296.6 13.9 11.0 (4.4) 434.0 2.0 1,7531
January 2005
Share-based - - 106 - - - 106
payments
Net gains on cash - - - 3809 - - 380.9
flow hedges
Deferred taxation - - - {116 9) - - {116.9)
on net gains on
cash flow hedges
Tota! income for the - - 1086 2640 - - 2746
year recognised
directly in equity
Profit for the year - - - - 292 8 0z 293.0
Equity dividends - - - - (96 0) - {96.0)
At 1 January 2006 1,296.6 13.9 216 2596 630.8 2.2 2,2247
Net losses on cash - - - {1,153 4) - - {1,153.4)
flow hedges
Deferred taxation - - - 3487 - - 348.7
on net losses on
cash flow hedges
Total income for the - - - (804 7) - - (804.7)
year recognised
directly in equity
Profit for the year - - - - 3419 02 3421
Total income for - - - - 341.9 0.2 3421
the year
Additrions - - - - - 01 0.1
Equity dividends - - - - (105 0) - (105 0)
At 31 December 1,296.6 13.9 21.6 (545.1) 8677 2.5 1,657.2

2006
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EDF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

31 DECEMBER 2006

Share Share Capital Hedging Retained Total
Capital Premium Reserves Reserve Earnings equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2005 1,296.6 13.9 11.0 129 9.6 1,344.0
Share-based - - 21 - - 2.1
payments
Net gains on cash flow - - - 3966 - 396.6
hedges
Deferred taxation on - - - (119 7) - (119.7)
net gains on cash flow
hedges
Total iIncome for the
year recognised - - 21 276 9 - 279.0
directly in equity
Profit for the year - - - - 1810 181.0
Equity dividends - - “ - (96 0} (96.0)
At 1 January 2006 1,296.6 13.9 131 2898 94.6 1,708.0
Net losses on cash - - - (1,168 8) - {1,168 8)
flow hedges
Deferred taxation on - - - 3506 - 3508
net losses on cash
flow hedges
Total ncome for the
year recognised - - - (818 2) - (818.2)
directly in equity
Profit for the year - - - - 10567 105.7
Equity dividends - - - - (105 @) {105.0)
At 31 December 2006  1,296.6 13.9 131 {528 4) 95.3 890.5
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. General information

EDF Energy plc 15 2 company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 1985 The
address of the registered office 1s given on page 1 The nature of EDF Energy plc and its subsidianes’
{together the “Group” or “EDF Energy”) operations and their principal activities are set out In note 5 and In
the Directors’ Report on pages 2 — 7

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that i1s the currency of the pnmary
economic environment in which the Group operates

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following Standards and interpretations
were In 1Ssue but not yet effective and therefore not adopted

e IFRS 7 Finangal Instruments Disclosures

¢ |IFRS 8 Operating Segments

« |IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 Fmancial Reporting In
Hypernflationary Economies

IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS2

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of embedded denvatives

IFRIC 10 Intenm Financial Reporting and Impairment

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 Group and Treasury Share Transactions

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future penods will
have no matenal impact on the financial statements of the Group, except to provide some additional
disclosure

2. Changes in accounting policies and reclassifications

Impact of application of IFRIC4

The interpretation IFRIC4, “Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease”, became effective on
1 January 2006 This interpretation concerns the identification of agreements that convey the nght to use
an asset or group of specific assets to the purchaser, although they do not have the legal form of a lease
contract, in that the purchaser in the arrangement benefits from a substantial share of the asset's
production and payment 1s not dependent on production or market price Such agreements are accounted
for as leases 1n accordance with IAS17

Applhcation of IFRIC4 15 considered a change in accounting policy, and the comparative information has
been restated accordingly The resulting impact on Group equity at 1 January 200515 £22 1m

Reclassifications

In 2006, the Group has decided to separately disclose its losses/gains arising from denvative financial
instruments on the face of the income statement, rather than in fuel and energy purchases as in 2005
The comparative information has also been reclassified as a result of this change in disclosure

In 2005, the Group disclosed provision releases related to energy contracts within administrative
expenses rather than within fuel and energy purchases It has been decided to reclassify these releases
to fuel and energy purchases and the comparative information has been restated accordingly This has
led to an increase in gross margin of £30 3m but no 1impact on overall operating profit in 2005

In 2005, the Group included all deferred income within current llabilities, however it has been decided to
split deferred income to show its current and non-current split The 2005 comparative information has
been restated accordingly
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EDF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2, Changes in accounting policies and reclassifications continued

31 DECEMBER 2006

fn 2005, the Group included all denvative and financial assets and liabilities within current assets and
llabiities The 2005 comparative informatton has been reclassified to analyse the denvatives and financial
instruments spht between current and non-current assets or iabiities

In 2005, the Group excluded short term deposits from its cash and cash equivalents per the cash flow
statement it has been decided to inctude them In the cash flow statement to ensure that the cash and

cash equivalents i1s consistent between the cash flow statement and the balance sheet

Group balance sheet

Non-current assets

2005 as IFRIC4 Deferred
reported impact income

£m £m £m

8,244 3 (12 9) -

1AS 39 2005
restated

£m £m

2487  8,480.1

Current assets 2,259 3 350 - (2487) 2,045.6
Total assets 10,603 6 221 - - 10,525.7
Current habilities 43730 68 (1,1009) (9695 3,168.8
Non current habilities 39280 68 1,100 9 96 5 5,132.2
Total habilities 83010 - - - 8,301 0
Net assets 22026 221 - - 2,224.7

Group Income Statement 2005as IFRIC4 2005 as
reported impact restated
£m £m £m
Revenue 45746 29 4,5775
Expenses (4,144 1) (94) (4,153.5)
Profit before tax 4305 (6 5) 4240
Tax (156 6) 20 {154 6)
Share of profit of associates 178 57 236
Minonty tnterest {02) - {0.2)
Total profit transferred to retained earnings 2918 12 2928
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2. Changes in accounting policies and reclassifications continued

Group Cash Flows 2005 as IFRIC4 Shortterm 2005 as
reported impact deposits restated
Em £m £m Em
Profit before taxation 4305 {65) - 424 0
Net cash from operating activities 5619 {38 1) - 5238
Net cash used in investing activities (495 8) 75 - (488 3)
Net cash used in financing activities (20 3) 304 (869 2) (59 1)
Total cash movements in the year 458 - (69 2) (23 86)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 830 - 106 7 1887
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 128 8 - 373 166 1

3. Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

In the current year the Group has adopted all applicable International Financial Reperting Standards and
Interpretations 1ssued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (the IASB} and the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (the IFRIC) of the IASB that are relevant to its operations
and effective for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2006 and endorsed by the EU (IFRS)

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for derivative
financial Instruments that have been measured at fair value

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent
company, using consistent accounting policies Control 1s achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities
All intercompany balances, and transactions, including unreahsed profits arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated on conseolidation

Minonty interests In the net assets of consclidated subsidianies are 1dentified separately from the Group's
equity therem Minonty nterests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the onginal
business combination and the minonty's share of changes In equity since the date of the combination
Losses applicable to the minonty In excess of the minonty's interest in the subsidiary’s equity are
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation
and 1s able to make an additional investment to cover the losses

No income statement I1s presented for EDF Energy plc (the Company) in accordance with the exemptions

alowed by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 The profit dealt with in the Company for the year
was £105 7m before dividends paid (2005 £181 Om)
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
3. Significant accounting policies continued

Business combinations

The Group accounts for purchases of subsidiaries using the purchase method The cost 1Is measured as
the total farr value on the date of acquisiton of assets, hiabiibes and equity instruments given as
consideration, plus any costs directly incurred In the purchase The assets and llabilittes acquired are
measured at fair value on the date of acquisition, except for assets and labilities that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5§ Non Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations,
which are measured at farr value less costs of disposal

Any minonty interest in the acquired entity 1s initially measured at the minonty proportion of the fair value
of assets and liabilities recognised

Goodwill anising on acquisition 1s recognised as an asset and imtially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the Group's interest In the net far value of the identifiable
assets, labilities and contingent habiiies 1f, after reassessment, the Group’s interest In the net fair value
of the acquiree's 1dentifiable assets, labiities and contingent habilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess 1s recognised immediately in the profit or loss

The interest of minonty shareholders in the acquiree 1s inihially measured at the minonty's proportion of
the net fair value of the assets, liabiities and contingent habilities recognised

Investments in associates

An associate s an entity over which the Group 15 1n a position to exercise significant influence, but not
control or joint control, through participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
Significant influence 1s the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but 1s not control or joint control over those policies

The results and assets and habilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using
the equity method of accounting Investments in associates are carried In the balance sheet at cost plus
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate less any impairment in the
value of individual investments Losses of the associates in excess of the group’s interest in those
associates are not recognised

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the fair values of the identifiable net
assets, of the associate at the date of acquisition 1s recognised as goodwill netted against the investment
Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the Group’s share of the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the associate at the date of acquisition (1 e discount on acquisition} 1s credited in the iIncome
statement in the penod of acquisition

Where a group company transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the

extent of the Group's Interest in the relevant associate Losses may provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred in which case appropriate provision 1s made for impairment
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
3. Significant accounting policies continued

Interest in joint ventures

The Group’s interests in its joint ventures are accounted for by proportionate consolidation, which
involves recognising a proportionate share of the joint venture's assets, liabilities, ncome and expenses
with similar items in the consolidated financial statements on a line-by-line basis

Where the Group transacts with its jointly controlled entities, unrealised profits and losses are elminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint venture

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisiion over the Group's
interest in the far value of the identifiable assets and habilties of a subsidiary, associate or jointly
controlled entity at the date of acquisiton Goodwill 1s inthally recognised as an asset at cost and 1s
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses

Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently iIf events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be imparred For the purpose of imparrment testing, goodwill i1s
allocated to each of the Group's cash generating units and these are tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there 1s an indication that the unit may be impaired If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit I1s less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss 1s allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the umit and then to the other assets of the unt
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit  Any imparrment loss I1s recognised
immediately in the income statement and 15 not reversed 1n a subsequent pernod

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets mainly consist of IT software IT software 1s initially recognised at cost and I1s
amortised over a useful economic life of 3-8 years

Foreign currency translation

The functional and presentation currency of EDF Energy plc 1s pounds sterhing Transactions n foreign
currency are initiaily recorded in the functional currency rate at the rate on the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and liabilites denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functionai
currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date All differences are taken to the Consclidated
Income Statement

In order to hedge Its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into forward contracts
(see below for details of the Group's accounting polcies in respect of such dernvative financial
instruments)

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the farr value of the consideration or receivable and represents amounts
recelvable for goods and services provided In the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and
other sales related taxes

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed Revenue from gas and
electricity distribution includes an estimate of the sales value of units and volume supplied to customers
between the date of the last meter reading and the year end, and the inveice value of other goods sold
and services provided
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
3. Significant accounting policies continued

Revenue from long term contracts 1s recogrised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy on
construction contracts (see below)

Interest Income 1s recognised as the interest accrues (using the effective interest method that 1s the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financral instrument)
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset

Dividend income from investments I1s recognised when the shareholders’ nghts to receive payment have
been established

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment n

value Depreciation 1s calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful Iife of the asset and
charged to income as follows

Generation assets - 10 to 30 years
Network assets - 10 to 60 years
Freehold land - Not depreciated
Other buidings
-freehold - Up to 40 years
-leasehold - Lower of lease period or 40 years
Vehicles and mobile plant - 5to 10 years
Fixtures and equipment - 3to 8 years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for imparrment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same bhasis as
owned assets or, where shorter, over the term of the relevant lease

Contnbutions received from third parties towards distnbution network assets, which include capital grants,
are credited to the balance sheet as deferred income on receipt and amortised to the income statement
over the lives of the distnbution network assets to which they relate

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than continuing use This condition 1s regarded as met only when the sale 1s highly
probable and the asset 1s available for iImmediate sale in its present condition The Group must be
committed to the sale which should be expected to qualfy for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost inctudes all costs incurred n
bringing each product to its present location and condition The cost of raw matenals, consumables and
goods for resale 1s calculated using the weighted average cost basis Work-in-progress and finished
goods are valued using the cost of direct matenals and labour plus atinbutable overheads based on a
normal level of actvity Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less any further costs
expected to be incurred in completion and disposal

Provisions are made for obsolete, slow moving or defective items where appropriate

25




EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
3. Suignificant accounting policies continued

EU Emissions trading scheme

The Group recognises its free emissions allowances recerved under the National Allocation Plan at nil
cost Purchased emissions allowances are initialty recognised at cost (purchase price) within intangible
assets A hability 1s recognised when the level of emissions exceeds the level of allowances granted The
hability 1Is measured at the cost of purchased allowances up to the level of purchased allowances held,
and then at the market price of allowances ruling at the balance sheet date Movements are
recognised within operating profit  Forward contracts for the purchase or sale of emissions allowances
are measured at fair value with gains and losses ansing from changes In far value recognised In the
income statement The intangible assets are surrendered at the end of the comphance penod reflecting
the consumption of economic benefit As a result no amortisation I1s recorded durning the penod

Long term contracts

Where the outcome of a long term contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date This 1s normally
recogrused by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated
total contract costs, except where this woutd not be representative of the stage of completion Vanations
in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have been agreed
with the customer

Where the outcome of a long term contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue 1s recognised
to the extent of contract costs incurred that it 1s probable will be recoverable Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period In which they are incurred

When 1t 1s probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss Is
recognised as an expense immediately

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it 15 probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation  If the effect of
the time value of money 1s matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the nsks specific to the hability

Arrangements containing a lease

In compliance with interpretation IFRIC 4, the Group identifies agreements that convey the rnight to use an
asset or group of specific assets to the purchaser although they do not have the iegal form of a lease
contract, in that the purchaser in the arrangement benefits from a substantial share of the asset's
production and payment in not dependent on production or market price

Such arrangements are treated as leases, and analysed with reference to IAS 17 for classification as
either operating or finance leases

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nisks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases Rentals
payable under operating leases are charged in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease term  Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at thewr far value or,
if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease
The corresponding hability to the lessor 1s Included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hiabiity, with charges being recognised
directly in the iIncome statement
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
3. Significant accounting policies continued .

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments 1s
recognised as a recewvable The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the
recewable 1s recognised as unearned finance iIncome Lease income is recognised over the term of the
lease, on a straight-ine basis, using the net investment method, which recognises a constant penodic
rate of return When assets are leased out under an operating lease, assets are carned on the balance
sheet based on the nature of the asset

Taxation
The Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the sncome statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group's
hability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date

Deferred iInceme tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and habihities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method Deferred tax
labilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utiised Such assets and habilities are not recognised if the temporary
differences anse from goodwill or from the nitial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and ltabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax labilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments n
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group 1s able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it 1s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered

Deferred tax i1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pencd when the liability 1s
settled or the asset realised Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with In

equity

Deferred tax assets and liabiities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax
assets against current tax habitties and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authonty and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and habilities on a net basis

Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
3. Significant accounting policies continued

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes The cost of providing benefits 1s determined using
the projected unit credit method with actuaral valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date
Actuanal gains and losses are recognised as income or expense when the net cumulative unrecognised
actuarial gains or losses for each individual plan at the end of the previous reporting year exceeded 10%
of the higher of the defined benefit cbligation or the fair value of plan assets at that date These gains or
losses are recognised over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating
in the plans Past service cost 1s recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already
vested, and otherwise 15 amortised on a straight-ine basis over the average penod untl the benefits
become vested

The retirement benefit obligation recognised on the balance sheet represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuanal gains and losses and unrecognised past
service cost, and as reduced by the farr value of scheme assets Any asset resulting from this calculation
1Is imited to unrecognised actuanal losses and past service cost, plus the present value of avaitable
refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabiliies are recogmsed on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at onginat invoice amount and are subsequently
measured at far value An allowance i1s recognised in the income staterment for irrecoverable amounts
when there I1s evidence that the asset 1s impaired The allowance 1s calculated as the difference between
the carrying amount and the expected future cash flows from the asset

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash at hand and other short-term liquid investments which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

Financral habilities and equity

Financial habilities are classified according to the nature of the contractuat obligations, and are based on
the definition of iability An equity instrument 1s a contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group

Interest bearing loans and borrowngs

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially measured at proceeds receved, net of direct ssue
costs Foreign currency denominated bank loans and overdrafts are restated at closing exchange rates
with any movements going through the income statement unless it 1s designated as a cash flow hedge
Any differences between the proceeds and the settlement/redemption of the borrowings are measured on
an accrual basis and recognised over the life of the instrument

Trade payables

Trade payables are measured at fair value
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3. Significant accounting policies continued

Financial instruments continued
Denvatives and other financral instruments and hedge accounting

The Group's activities expose it to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity
prices including sale and purchase prices of gas, coal and electncity

The Group uses derivatives and other financial instruments to hedge its nsks associated with price
fluctuations relating to forecasted transactions and centractual obligations Foreign currency rnisk arises
from bonds which are denominated in foreign currencies The Group’s policy 1s to hedge/fix known
currency exposures through currency swap agreements that fix the Sterling equwvalent that will be
required to service the debt

Commodity price nisk arises from the forward purchases of gas, coal and electricity When commodity
contracts have been entered into as part of the Group's normal business activity, the Group seeks to
classify them as “own use” contracts and outside the scope of IAS 39 This i1s achieved when

a physical delivery takes place under all such contracts,
the volumes purchased or sold under the contracts correspond to the Group's operating
requirements, and

+ the contracts are not considered as wnitten options as defined by the standard

Commodity contracts nct qualifying as ‘own use’ which also meet the definition of a derivative are within
the scope of IAS39 This includes both financial and non-financial contracts

The use of derivatives and other financial instruments 1s governed by the Group's policies, approved by
the Board of Directors The Group does not use dernvatives and other financial instruments for
speculative purposes

Derivatives and other financial instruments are measured at fair value on the contract date and are re-
measured to far value at subsequent reporting dates Changes in the fair value of derivatives and other
financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income statement as
they anse Changes in the farr values of dervative financial instruments that are designated as hedges of
future cash flows are recognised directly in equity with any neffective element being recognised
immediately in the ncome statement

The Group classifies hedges in the following categories
Fair value hedges

These instruments hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset or liabihity recorded in the
balance sheet, or a firm commitment to purchase or sell an asset Changes n the far value of the
hedged item attributable to the hedged component of that item are recorded in the iIncome statement and
offset by corresponding vaniations in the fair value of the hedging instrument Only the ineffective portion
of the hedge has an impact on income

Cash flow hedges

These instruments hedge highly probable future transactions, the vanability in cash flows generated by
the hedged transaction i1s offset by changes in the value of the hedging instrument The effective portion
of accumulated changes In the hedge’s fair value 1s recorded In equity, and the neffective portion (1 e
changes In the fair value of the hedging instrument in excess of changes in the fair value of the item) 1s
recorded In the income statement When the hedged cash flows matenalise, the amounts previously
recognised In equity are transferred to the iIncome statement in the same way as for the hedged item
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3. Significant éccounting policies continued

Financial instruments continued
Denvatives and other financial instruments and hedge accounting

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument 1s sold, terminated, exercised or no
longer qualifies as a hedging instrument At that time, for any forecast transactions, the cumulative gain or
loss Is retained in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs If the transaction i1s no longer expected
to occur, any gain or loss 1s recognised immediately in the income statement for the penod

Denvatives embedded n other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when therr nsks and charactenstics are not closely related to those of the host contract, and
the host contract 1s not carned at far value with unrealised gans or losses reported in the income
statement

Due to the vertically integrated nature of the Group the electnicity demand from the retall business
provides a natural hedge for the electricity procured from the generation business Any residual exposure
to movements in the price of electncity, gas or coal 1s mitigated by entenng into contracts and hedging
options on the forward markets Risk of loss 1s mitigated through establishment of approved
counterparties and maximum counterparty limits and mimimum credit ratings

Gains and losses on gas, electricity and coa! contracts designated as cash flow hedges are deferred and
recognised in the income statement when the hedged transaction occurs Gains and losses on any
contracts which have not been designated as cash flow hedges are credited/charged to the income
statement in the penod in which they arise

Share based payments

EDF Energy plc's ultimate parent company, Electricité de France S A {(“EDF") 1s listed on Euronext, the
French stock exchange Any share-based payments to employees are measured at fair value at the date
the shares are 1ssued The fair value i1s measured using the Black-Scholes model, taking into account any
preferential terms offered to staff such as discounts and free shares Any Group contribution to the
scheme I1s charged to the income statement in the period in which it arises, at the fair value determined by
the model A corresponding amount 1S recognised as a capital contribution from Electncité de France S A
within equity

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, some critical accounting judgements have
been applied by management and some batances are based on estimates

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

Revenue Recogmition

Turnover includes an estimate of the sales value of units supplied to customers between the date of the
last meter reading and the year end This I1s calculated by reference to data received through the
settlement systems but not billed together with estimates of consumption not yet processed through
settlements

Revenue 1s valued at average pence per unit, and any unbilled revenue Is treated as an unbilled debtor

Management adjust this figure based on a judgement of the likellhood of collecting the outstanding debt
based on historic data
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Provisions

Provisions for habilities are made where a liability exists but is uncertain in respect of amount or when the
hability will fall due Provisions are made against bad and doubtful debt as well as obsolete stock
Provision against debtors 1s estimated based on applying a percentage provision rate to the aged debt
book at the end of each period The provision rates are based on the comparison of historical rates of
collection compared to billing data Any over or under statement of the provision 1s essentially a timing
difference to the actual wnite-off level Provision i1s made against stock taking account of the age of the
asset, using predefined formulae derived from actual experence

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Decommissioning provisions

The Group has provided for decommissioning its three power stations These provisions are based on the
expenence of other companies within the EDF group, adjusted for specific 1ssues associated with each
power station and are discounted Expected future costs of decommissioning are menitored to ensure
that the provision remains at an adequate level Further information about decommissioning provisions
can be found In note 33

Penstons and other post-employment benefits

The pension deficit 1s calculated by independent qualfied actuanes, based on actual payroll data and
certain actuarial assumptions These actuarial assumptions are made to mode! potential future costs and
benefits and include, Iife expectancy, rates of returns on plan assets, inflation and expected retirement
age These assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis and may change based on current market
data Changes in assumptions could lead to additional actuanal gains and losses being recognised
Further information 1s available about pensions in note 43

Goodwill impairment

The impairment review for goodwill 1s based on the Group’s medium term plans and assumptions
concerning discount rates  Further detall on the assumptions used in the calculation can be found in
note 17

Fair value of energy dernvatives

Energy derivatives are carried at farr value in the balance sheet after the adoption of IAS 39 on 1 January
2005 The valuations of these denvatives are estimates based, where avallable, on published forward
price curves Where published information 1s not avallable, valuation techniques have been used to
determine far values Further detalls about the assumptions used in these valuation techniques can be
found in note 32

Energy delivery not yet metered

The unbilled revenue representing quanthes of energy delivered but not hilled 1s calculated at the
reporting date based on consumption statistics and selling price estimates These statistics and
eshmates are sensitive to the assumptions used In determining the portion of sales not billed at the
reporting date

Financial lease models

During the year, the Group has adopted IFRIC4 and as a result, has started to account for some long
term contracts as financial lease arrangements In order to evaluate these arrangements, detailed
financial models have been drawn up, which include specific assumptions regarding margins on
construction, operating costs and maintenance expenditure, as well as forecast capital expenditure,
interest rates and inflation rates Any changes In these assumptions would impact upon the profit
recognition within the lease models
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5. Segment information

The Group's primary reporting format 1s business segments and ts secondary format 1S geographical
segments The operating businesses are organised and managed separately according to the nature of
the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers
different products and serves different markets

Regulated Networks Branch Transfer of electricity from the points where it is received in bulk, across the
distribution systems and its delivery to consumers

Other Networks Branch Operation, maintenance and expansion of private electrical distnbution systems

Customer and Energy Branch includes the generation, purchase and supply of electricity to customers
and purchase and supply of gas to customers

Other This primarly includes the provision of services to the Group, e g facilities, property and
insurance All assets held for sale are included within Other

Transfer prices between business segments are set on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to
transactions with third parties

The Group’s geographical segment 1s determined by the location of the Group's assets and operations
All revenue, expense and transactions take place in the United Kingdom Also all assets and liabilities
are entrrely In the United Kingdom and hence no separate tables have been disclosed for the
geographical segment
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5. Segment information continued

Group Segmental Analysis 31 December 20086;

31 DECEMBER 2006

Year ended 31 December 2006 Regulated Other Customer Other Total

Networks Networks and Operations

Energy
£m £m £m £m Em

Revenue
Sales to external customers 697 2 362 2 46212 83 5,688.9
Inter-segment sales 284 8 68 187 (3103) -
Segment revenue 9820 3690 46399 (302 0) 5,688 9
Result
Operating profit 484 1 94 54 1 46 1 §93.7
Investment revenue 734
Finance costs (246.3)
Profit before taxation 420.8
Taxation {58.1)
Share of profit of associates (20.6)
Profit for the year from operations 342.1

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices

Assets and liabilities

5617 36809 12222 11,1714
296 233 - 52.9

5813 3,7042 12222 11,2243

Segment assets 57166
Investment in assocliates -
Total assets 57166
Segment habilities 41299

Unallocated llabiities -

307 2 40990 3842 8,920 3
- - 646 8 646.8

Total labilities 41299

307 2 40000 1,0310 8,567 1

Other segment information
Capital expenditure

Tangible and intangible fixed assets 5327 151 2345 118 794.1
Depreciation 164 6 23 863 236 276.8
Amortisation - 02 187 25 21.4
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5. Segment information continued

Group Segmental Analysis 31 December 2005.

Year ended 31 December 2005 Customer Total

Regulated Other and Operations

Networks Networks Energy  Other

£m £m £m Em £m

Revenue
Sales to external customers 6126 2830 3,660 1 218 45775
Inter-segment sales 268 2 127 147  {2956) -
Segment revenue 880 8 2857 36748 (273 8) 4,577.5
Result
Operating profit 4150 {49) 186 3 213 617.7
Investment revenue 548
Finance costs (248.5)
Profit before taxation 424.0
Taxation {(154.6)
Share of profit of associates 23.6
Profit for the year from
operations 293.0
inter-segment sales are charged at prevaiing market prices
Assets and lhabilities
Segment assets 52680 4186 2,9881 1,7955 10,470 2
Investment In associates - 489 233 (167) 555
Total assets 52680 467 5 3,0114 17788 10,525.7
Segment liabilities 3,968 4 2834 26039 4884 7,354.1
Unallocated habiities - - - 8946 9 946 9
Total habihties 3,068 4 283 4 26039 14453 8,301.0
Other segment information
Capital expenditure
Tangible and intangible fixed assets 5006 01 945 951 690.3
Depreciation 154 6 18 778 373 2715
Amortisation 02 05 16 1 19 18.7

The 2005 segmental note has been restated due to the allocation of the pension deficit across the Group
In 2006 The allocation of the deficit was based on past service of all members {past and current) of the
schemes, dependant on their area of work
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6. Revenue

An analysis of the Group’s revenue Is as follows
Yearended  Year ended

2006 2005
£m £m
Sales of goods and services 5,566 0 44935
Revenue from long term contracts 106.2 69 1
Property rental Income 6.9 51
Miscellanecus revenue 9.8 98
5,688.9 45775
Other operating income 22.7 371
Investment revenue (note 12) 734 548
Total revenue 5,785.0 4,669 4
Other operating income relates to the profit on disposal of non-current assets
7. Profit for the year
2006 2005
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting) £m £m
Net foreign exchange gains (0.3) (10
Research and development costs 4.1 is
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 19 ) 276.8 2715
Amortisation of intangtble assets (note 18 ) 21.4 187
Staff costs {see note 10) 377.5 3823
Auditors’ remuneratien for audit services 0.9 09
Auditors' remuneration for non-audit services ( see note 7 below) 0.7 06
Cost of inventonies recognised as expense 454.3 3032
Fair valuation of denvative contracts (note 32 ) 829 (35 4)
Operating lease rentals 37.4 36 1
Bad debt provision 6.9 (12 8}

The amortisation of intangible assets 1s Included within depreciation and amortisation in the ncome
statement

The analysis of auditors’ remuneration 1s as follows

2006 2005
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company’s
and Group accounts 0.1 01
The audit of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 0.8 08
Total audit fees 0.9 0%
Other services 0.3 04
Non-statutory interm review 0.1 01
Tax services 0.2 01
Other services pursuant o legtslation 01 -
Total non-audit fees 0.7 06

Fees payable to Deloitte & Touche LLP and therr associates for non-audit services to the Company are not
required to be disclosed because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on
a consolidated basis
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8. Fuel and energy purchases

2006 2005
£m Em
Purchase of energy 2,742.9 2,0208
Distribution and transmission 546.1 4349
Carbon certificates 83.3 645
Release of provisions (29.0) (41 3)
Total fuel and energy purchases 3,343.3 24789
9. Directors’ emoluments
2006 2005
£m £m
Emoluments 1.1 10
2006 2005
Number Number
Members of defined benefit pension scheme 1 1
2006 2005
Emoluments payable to the highest paid director were as follows £m £m
Aggregate emoluments 0.7 06
10. Staff costs
Staff costs ansing in the year, mcluding directors’ emoluments were as follows
2006 2005
GROUP £m £m
Wages and salarnes 348.6 3372
Social secunty costs 32.3 290
Other pension costs 53.9 592
Share scheme - 14 9
Less capitalised costs {57.3) (58 0)
377.5 3823
The monthly average number of employees, including directors, dunng the year was as
follows
2006 2005
Number Number
Regulated Networks branch 3,491 3,592
Customer and Energy branch 5,706 5,318
Other Networks branch 1,432 1,305
Others 890 696
11,519 10,911
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10. Staff costs continued

2006 2005
COMPANY £m £m
Wages and salanes §5.2 326
Social secunty costs 71 485
Other penston costs 10.9 126
Share scheme - 29

73.2 527

The monthly average number of employees in the Company during the year was as follows

2006 2005

Number Number

Management 308 304
Other staff 999 952
1,307 1,256

11 Employee share offering

As part of EDF's imtial public offering (*IPC”) in 2005, employees of the Group on 14 November 2005 were
offered shares under several preferential schemes

Across the Group, the employees purchased 1,897,547 shares through this offer 389,568 shares were
purchased by employees of the Company The Group expense resulting from the price discount, the award
of free shares and deferred payment terms amounts to £10 6m and was entirely recorded in 2005, in
accordance with IFRS 2, as these benefits vest mmediately The correspending Company expense was
£2 1m These amounts were funded by EDF and therefore are reflected as a capital contnbution in the
Group accounts See note 39

The additional contribution made by EDF Energy to the benefit of employees across the Group n
connectton with thus share offering amounted to £4 3m (£0 8m of this related to employees of the Company)

There has been no offering of shares to employees of the Group or Company in 2008

12. Investment revenue

Restated

2006 2005

£m £m

Interest on bank deposits 17.4 113
Income from investments 1.7 06
Dividends from equity accounted investments - 04
Pension scheme interest 27.0 120
Finance ingcome receivable under finance leases 24.9 305
Other finance income 24 -
Total investment revenue 73.4 548
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13 Finance costs

2006 2005

£m £m
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 48.9 332
Interest on bonds 134.6 1527
Interest on other loans 34.2 328
Finance charges payable under finance leases 220 232
Unwinding of discount on provisions 6.6 66
Total borrowing costs 246.3 2485
14. Tax on profit on ordinary activities
Analysis of tax charge n the year
Current tax Restated

2006 2005

Em £m
UK corporation tax 98.5 787
Adjustments n respect of current iIncome tax of previous years {90 5) 46
Total current tax expense 8.0 833
Deferred tax (note 34)

Restated
2006 2005

£m £m
Current year 325 550
Adjustment in respect of previous years 17.6 163
Total deferred tax charge 50.1 713
Income tax expense reported In income statement {note 14(b)) 58.1 1546

{(b) The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows

2006 2005
£m £m
Profit before tax 420.8 424 0
Tax at the UK Corporation tax rate of 30% (2005 30%) 126.2 127 2
Effect of
Non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income 4.8 65
Adjustment to prior year corporation tax charge (90 5) 46
Adjustment to pnor year deferred tax charge 17.6 16 3
Income tax expense reported in income statement £8.1 154 6
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14. Tax on profit on ordinary activities continued

For a number of years there have been discussions regarding the tax treatment of payments made under the
Teesside power purchase agreement These discussions concluded this year and the tax treatment was
agreed with Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs (*HMRC") A significant proportion of the prior year tax
credit related to the release of the excess Teesside tax provision which was over and above that agreed with
the HMRC

In the current year a deferred tax credit of £348 7m (2005 charge of £116 9m) has been recognised In
equity which relates to losses arnising on derivative instruments which have been included as cash flow
hedges under IAS39 See note 41

On 21 March 2007, proposals were announced in the UK budget for the reform of tax allowances available
for capital expenditure These changes are lkely to affect the tax position of the Group going forward,
although the likely impact of this has not yet been quantified

15. Dividends
2006 2005
£m £rn
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period
Final dvidend paid 105.0 96 0
105.0 960

The final dividend per share in 2006 for the Group and the Company was 4 72p per share (2005 4 32p)

16. Goodwill

GROUP £m
Cost

At 1 January 2005 and 1 January 2006 1,257 3
Recognised on acquisition of trade 35
At 31 December 2006 1,260.8

Carrying Amount

At 31 December 2006 1,260.8

At 31 December 2005 1,257 3
COMPANY £m

Cost

At 1 January 2005 and 1 January 2006 -

Recognised on acquisition of trade 06

At 31 December 2006 0.6

Carrying Amount
At 31 December 2006 0.6

At 31 December 2005 _

The increase in goodwill duning the year related to the purchase of a metering trade
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17. Impairment testing of goodwill

2006 2005
Allocation of goodwill to Branches £m £m
Customer and Energy Branch 1,142.2 1,139 3
Regulated Networks Branch 40.0 400
Other Networks Branch 78.0 780
Corporate Branch 0.6 -
Totat goodwill 1,260.8 1,257 3

Durnng the year, impairment testing has been carried out at a cash generating unit (‘CGU") level, based on
value in use, using the Group's three year medium term plans for each CGU An estimated growth rate of
2 25% 1s used, which 1s based on current information and industry norms These medium term plans are
based on pre-tax discounted cash flows, using discount rates of between 9 4% - 10 7% Other assumptions
applied to each CGU are detalled below The application of these assumptions did not give nse to an
impairment charge In respect of goodwill in 2006 (2005 £nil)

Customers and Energy
The impairment review was hased on the three year medium term plan and included assumptions about
customer growth numbers, discount rates, forward electricity and power prices

Regulated networks

The impairment review was based on the three year medium term plan and included assumptions about the
level of premium to be achieved on regulated asset value (RAV), the outcome of the Distribution Price
Contral Review and the discount rate to be applied

Other networks

The impairment review was based on the three year medium term plan and included assumptions about
contract gains and the discount rate to be applied
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18. Intangible assets

EU Emissions IT Software Total
Trading
GROUP Certificates
£m £m £m
Cost
Cost at 1 January 2005 - 169 1 169.1
Additions 632 254 88.6
At 1 January 2006 63.2 194.5 257.7
Additions 158 4 255 183.9
Disposals (63 2) 01N {63.3)
At 31 December 2006 158.4 219.9 378.3
Amortisation
At 1 January 2005 - (64 5) (64.5)
Charge for the year - (18 7) (18.7)
At 1 January 2006 - (83.2) (83.2)
Charge for the year - (21 4) (21.4)
At 31 December 2006 - {104 6) {104.6)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2006 158.4 115.3 273.7
At 31 December 2005 63 2 1113 1745
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18. Intangible assets continued

£U Emissions IT Software Total
Trading
COMPANY Cenrtificates
£m £m £m
Cost
Cost at 1 January 2005 - 1353 1353
Additions 632 67 69.9
At 1 January 2006 63.2 142.0 205.2
Additions 158 4 31 161.5
Disposals {63 2) (109 2) {172 4)
At 31 December 2006 158.4 35.9 194.3
Amortisation
Cost at 1 January 2005 - (58 0) {58.0)
Charge for the year - (18 2) {18 2)
At 1 January 2006 - (76.2) (76 2)
Charge for the year - 47) 47)
Disposals - 629 62.9
At 31 December 2006 - {18.0) {18.0)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2006 158.4 17.9 176.3
At 31 December 2005 632 658 1290

Duning the year, the Company transferred 1T software with a net book value of £46 3m at book value to
another Group company
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19. Property, plant and equipment

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

GROUP Land and Network Generation Motor  Equipment Assets in

Buildings Assets Assets Vehicles the course Total

of
construction
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2005 450 58143 1,255 4 380 2726 599 7.,485.2
Additions 299 450 4 - 79 (18) 1153 801.7
Transfers 3437 (317 1) 97 9 {12 4) 95 (121 6) -
Transfers to assets
held for sale 57 (08) - - - - {6.5)
Disposals (35) (129) - (34) {(75) - (27.3)
At 1 January 2006 409 4 59339 1,353 3 301 2728 536 8,053.1
Additions 344 4348 - on 133 127 8 610.2
Transfers (12 1) 107 727 144 378 (123 5) -
Transfers to assets
held for sale (26) - - - - - (2.6)
Transfers from assets
held for sale 41 - - - - - 41
Disposals 01 (13 5) (212) {47) (08) 32 (36 9)
At 31 December 2006 433.3 6,365.9 1,404.8 39.7 3231 61.1 8,627.9
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 January 2005 (79) (959 6) {224 8) {(170) (1828) - (1,392.1)
Charge for the year {4 0) (163 4) (74 2) (56) (24 3) - {271.5)
Transfers (108 8) 112 1 - 139 (17 2) - -
Transfers to assets
held for sale 25 07 - - - - 3.2
Disposals 23 12 2 - 33 52 - 23.0
At 1 January 2006 (115 9) (998 0) (298 0) (54) (2181) (1,637.4)
Charge for the year {56) (150 7) (84 2) (7 2) (29 1) - {276.8)
Transfers to assets
held for sale {08) - - - - - {0.8)
Transfers from assets
held for sale 05 - - - - - 0.5
Disposals 05 106 212 45 01 - 369
At 31 December 2006 (121.3) {(1,138.1) (362.0) (8.1) (248.1) - {1,877.6)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2006 312.0 5,227 8 1,042.8 31.6 75.0 61.1 6,750.3
At 31 December 2005 2935 49359 1,054 3 247 537 538 6,4157

43




ECF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

19 Property, plant and equipment continued

The carrying amount of the Group's generation assets includes an amount of £277 1m (2005 £296 9m) In
respect of assets held under finance leases

COMPANY Land and Equipment  Assets in the
Bulldings and fitings course of Total
construction
£m Em £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2005 275 374 - 64 9
Additions 70 107 - 17.7
Transfers to assets held for sale (55) {09) - (6.4}
Disposals (22) (35 - {5.7)
At 1 January 2006 268 437 - 70.5
Additions - - 122 12.2
Transfers (12 0) 201 (8 1) -
At 31 December 2006 14.8 63.8 41 82.7
lLand and Equipment Assets in the
Buildings and fittings course of Total
construction
£m £m £m £m
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2005 {7 1) (189) - (26.0)
Charge for the year {(14) (6 6) - {8.0)
Transfers 31 (31) - -
Transfers to assets held for sale 21 07 - 2.8
Disposals 15 18 - 3.3
At 1 January 2006 (1.8) {26.1) - (27.9)
Charge for the year {02) {9 6) - (9.8)
At 31 December 2006 20) (35.7) - (37.7)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2006 12.8 28.1 4.1 45.0

At 31 December 2005 250 17 6 - 42 6
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20. Non-current assets classified as held for sale

EDF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2006

Non-current assets held for sale relate to properties and thetr associated fittings which are planned to be sold
and are being actively marketed These properties are considered surplus to requirements and are expected

to be sold within the next year

GROUP Land and Equipment

Buildings and fittings Total

£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2005 117 01 11.8
Transfers from property, plant and equipment 57 08 6.5
At 1 January 2006 17 4 09 18.3
Transfers from property, plant and equipment 26 - 2.6
Transfers to property, plant and equipment 41) - {4.1)
Disposals (133) {09) (14.2)
At 31 December 2006 2.6 - 2.6

Land and Equipment

Buildings and fittings Total

£m £m £m

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2005 (15 - (1.5)
Transfers from property, plant and equipment {(29) {07 {3.2)
At 1 January 2006 {40) 07) {4.7)
Transfers from property, plant and equipment (05) - {0.5)
Transfers to property, plant and equipment 08 - 0.8
Disposals 32 07 3.9
At 31 December 2006 {0.5) - (0.5)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2006 21 - 2.1
At 31 December 2005 134 02 138
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20. Non-current assets classified as held for sale continued

EDF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2006

COMPANY Land and Equipment
Buldings and fithngs Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2006 556 09 6.4
Disposals {55) {09) (6.4)
At 31 December 2006 - - -
Land and Equipment
Buildings and fitings Total
£m £m £m
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2006 (21) {07) (2.8)
Disposals 21 07 2.8
At 31 December 2006 - - -
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2006 - - -
At 31 December 2005 34 0.2 3.6
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21. Investments in subsidiary undertakings

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

COMPANY Shares Loans Total
£m £m £m
At 31 December 2005 1,070 2 1,227 9 2,298.1
Increase n loans - 182 3 182.3
Repayments of loans - (64 3) {64.3)
At 31 December 2006 10702 1,345 ¢ 24161

Details on movements in loans are as follows

Balance at 31 Increase

Decrease Balance at 31

December 2005 in loans in loans December
2006
£m £m £m £m
Loans to EDF Energy Networks (SPN) plc 605 393 - 998
Loans to EDF Energy (Services) Limited M7 - {(36) 221
Loans to EDF Energy Transport (Services)
Limited 19 - {07) 12
Loans to EDF Energy 1 imited 400 10 - 410
Loans to EDF Energy (Energy Branch) plc 189 8 - (18 8) 1710
Loans to West Burton Property Limited 4190 - (352) 3838
Loans to EDF Energy Customers plc 1067 - - 1057
Loans to EDF Energy Customer Field
Services (Meterning) Limited 03 - - 03
Loans to CSW Investments 3790 600 - 4390
Leans to The Barkantine Heat & Power
Company Limited - 42 - 42
Loans to Kirkheaton Wind Limited - 08 - 08
Loans to High Hedley Limited 10 10
Loans to EDF Energy Development Branch - 25 - 25
plc
Loans to EDF Energy Networks (LPN) plc - 735 - 735
1,227.9 182.3 (64.3) 1,345.9

Accounts of all subsidiary companies are consolidated The principal undertakings at 31 December 2006,
which are incorporated in Great Brtain and are registered and operate in England and Wales (unless

otherwise stated), are as follows

Name of subsidiary

517 Limited*

CSW Investments™

Ealing Lighting {Finance) Limited*
Ealing Lighting Limited

Proportion

of

ownership
interest %

100%
100%
100%
100%

Proportion Principal
of voting Activity
power held
%
100% Telecommunication networks
100% Holding company
100% Street hghting contractor
100% Electrical contracting
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21. Investments in subsidiary undertakings continued

Name of subsidrary

EDF Energy Customer Field Services (Data)
Limited *

EDF Energy Customer Field Services
(Metering) Limited

EDF Energy {Asset Management) Limited *
EDF Energy (Contract Services) Limited *

EDF Energy (Cottam Power) Limited *

EDF Energy (Energy Branch) plc

EDF Energy (Enterprises) Limited

EDF Energy {London Heat & Power) Limited *

EDF Energy (Metro Holdings) Limited *
EDF Energy (Northern Offshore Wind) Limited

EDF Energy (Powerlink Holdings) Limited *
EDF Energy (Projects) Limited *

EDF Energy (Services) Limited

EDF Energy (South East Generation) Limited *
EDF Energy (South East) pic *

EDF Energy {South Eastern Services) Limited *
EDF Energy (Sutton Bridge Holdings) Limited *

EDF Energy (Sutton Bridge Power ) *
EDF Energy (Transport Services) Limited

EDF Energy (West Burton Power) Limited”
EDF Energy Networks {EPN) plc

EDF Energy Networks (LPN) plc
EDF Energy Networks (SPN) pic *
EDF Energy Networks Limited

Green Electron Limited

High Hedley Hope Wind Limited*

Ishington Lighting Limited*

Ishington Lighting (Finance) Limited*
Kirkheaton Wind Limited™

Kmght Debt Recovery Services Limited
EDF Energy Group ESPS Trustees Limited

London Electricity Projects Limited

London Electncity Share Scheme Trustees
Lirmited

EDF Energy Customers plc *

London Power Insurance Limited (Guernsey)

Proportion
of
ownership
interest %
100%

100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
75%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

Proportion
of voting
power held

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
76%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

%

31 DECEMBER 2006

Principal
Activity

Meter reading and related
services

Meter operations and related
services

Investment company
Maintenance of distribution
networks

Provision and supply of
electricity generation
Investment in electricity
generation

Investments in commercial
projects

Generation and supply of
electnicity and heat
Investment company
Development of generation
and supply

Investment company
Investment company
Electricity distribution project
Holding company

Holding company

Property management
Investment in power
generation company
Provision and supply of
electricity generation
Provision and supply of
transport services

Power generation
Management of distribution
network

Management of distribution
network

Management of distrnibution
network

Maintenance of distnbution
networks

Investrment company
Renewable power generation
Electrical contracting
Investment company
Renewable power generation
Debt collection and tracing
Trustees of employee
benefits

Project management
Trustees of employee share
and benefits funds
Electnicity retailing
Insurance
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21. Investments in subsidiary undertakings continued

Name of subsidiary

London Power SB Limited*

Longfield Insurance Company Limited*
(Isle of Man)
Norfolk Offshore Wind Limited *

Seeb Limited*

EDF Energy Contracting Limited *
SEEBOARD Employment Services Limited™
SEEBOARD Energy Gas Limited*
SEEBOARD Energy Limited”

EDF Energy {Development) plc *
SEEBOARD Highway Lighting No 2 Limited*
SEEBOARD Highway Lighting No 3 Limited*
SEEBOARD Highway Lighting No 4 Limited*
SEEBOARD Highway Services Limited*

SEEBCARD International Limited™
SEEBOARD Metering Limited*
SEEBOARD Natural Gas*

EDF Energy Powerlink Limited™
SEEBOARD Trading Limited *

Southern Gas Limited*

Sutton Bndge Financing Limited* (Cayman
Islands)

Sutton Bndge Investors *

The Barkantine Heat & Power Company
Limited”
EDF Energy 1 Limited

EDF Energy Homephone Limited
West Burton Property Limited”
Deletepicnic Limited

Dorset Lighting (Finance) Limited™
Dorset Lighting Limited*

Proportion
of
ownership
interest %
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
80%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

Proportion
of voting
power held

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
80%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

%

31 DECEMBER 2008

Principal
Activity

Investment in power
generation company
Insurance

Development of generation
and supply
Investment company

Electrical contracting
Management company
Gas supply

Energy supply

Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company

Investment company
Investment company
Investment company
Asset management
Investment company
Investrnent company
Financial activities

Investment in power
generation company
Generation and supply of
electnaity and heat
Marketing and supply of
electrnicity and gas
Telecoms retailing
Power generation
Holding company

Street hghting contractor
Electrical contracting

* Held indirectly
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

22. Investments in associates

Restated

2006 2005

£m £m

Cost of iInvestment in associates 4.1 292
Share of post acquisition gains/(losses) net of dividend 61.8 263
Total Investment 102.9 555

Provision for imparment (50.0) -

Carrying value of associates 52.9 555
Restated

2006 2005

Aggregated amounts relating to associates £m £m
Total assets 528.9 447 9
Total labilities {(476.0) (392 4)
Revenues 793.4 2133
{Loss)/profit {20.6) 236

Details of the Group's associates at 31 December 2006 are as follows

Name of associate Place of Proportion of Proportion of Method used to
incorporation ownership voting power account for
and operation interest % held % investment

Metronet SSL Limited Great Britain 20 0% 20 0% Equity

Metronet BCV Limited Great Britain 20 0% 20 0% Equity

Barking Power Limited Great Britain 18 9% 25% Equity

Thames Valley Power Limited Great Britain 50 0% 50 0% Equity

All associates are held indirectly

During 2006, a detaled cost review was undertaken which indicated that the Pernod One (2003 - 2010)
contract costs for Metronet BCV Limited and SSL Limited (together “Metronet”) could be significantly hugher
than ongnally anticipated

Under the contract, the project sponsors are able to recover part or whole of cost overruns from the client,
London Underground Limited, subject to the arbiter, whose duties are defined by contract, deeming through
an Extraordinary Review of the contract that the work carned out by Metronet has been done in an economic
and efficient manner

To date, the imihial view of the arbiter on the first three years of the contracts indicates that Metronet 1s likely
to be considered un-economic and inefficient in some areas of the contract

To reflect the significant uncertainty at 31 December 2006 over the contract and the value of the equity
invested, an imparment of £50m has been recorded against the carrying values of the investment in
Metronet, held by EDF Energy The provision 1s included within the loss from associates

Barking Power Limited 1s unable to pay dividends to its shareholders until all its bank financing has been
repaid as a result of a default under the terms of financing when TXU, its major off-taker, went into
administration
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
23. Interests in joint ventures

The Group has the following significant interests in Jjoint ventures

Name of joint venture Place of Proportion of  Proportion
Incorporation ownership of voting
and operation interest %  power held

%

Power Asset Development Company Limited Great Bnitain 50 0% 50 0%

Transdm Limited Great Britain 250% 25 0%

SABCO Unincorporated 50 0% 50 0%

S0LVe Unincorporated 50 0% 50 0%

MUJV Limited Great Britain 49 9% 49 9%

The share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the joint ventures which are included in the
consolidated financial statements, via proportionate consolidation, are as follows

Restated

2006 2005

£m £m

Current assets 529 412
Non-current assets 81.0 67 9
133.9 109 1
Current abilities {141.3) (43 4)
Non-current llabilities - (68 5)
(7.4) (2 8)

Revenue 104.7 105 2
Cost of sales {104.7) (97 0)
Administrative expenses {1.5) (87)
Finance costs 0.2 50
(Loss) / profit before iIncome tax {1.3) 45
Income tax credit / (expense) 0.6 (09}
Net (loss) / profit (0.7) 36

The Group's share in Trans4m Limited (trading as “Metronet Alllance’} has been accounted for as a jont
venture because there 1s Jjoint control, evidenced by the requirement for unamimous consent of all four
venturers for the strategic and operating decisions of the company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

24. lLong term receivables

GROUP COMPANY
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Amounts receivable from joint ventures 2.0 21 - -
Amounts receivable under PFI contracts 12.6 - - -
Amounts recevable from associates 8.0 38 - -
Investment in London & Continental Railways 25 25 2.5 25
Other receivables 1.0 72 - 13
26.1 166 2.5 38

Long term receivables represent investments and loans in other companies where the Group does not
exercise significant influence or control These assets are carred at cost which i1s considered to be the same

as farr value

25. Finance lease receivables

The Group has finance leases for various items of property, plant and machinery Future minimum lease
payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as

follows

Net investment in finance

Minimum lease payments leases
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Amounts receivable under finance leases
Within one year 99.2 858 47.3 44 3
After one year but not more than five
years 473.9 3776 167.8 168 4
More than five years 5,946.4 6,061 8 164.2 1308
6,519.5 6,525 2 379.3 3435
Less Unearned future finance income on
finance leases {6,140 2) (6,181 7) n/a n/a
Present value of minimum lease
payments receivable 379.3 3435 379.3 34356
Analysed as
Non-current finance lease receivables
(recoverable after more than 12 months) 47.3 44 3
Current finance lease receivables
(recoverable after more than 12 months) 332.0 2992
379.3 3435

An average effective rate of return of 12% (2005

12%) 1s generated by the finance lease debtors
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
26. Inventories

GROUP COMPANY
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m Em Em £m
Raw materials and consumables 233.8 126 8 209.3 104 5
Work in progress 419 21586 - -
275.7 148 3 209.3 104 5
None of the inventories have any exposure to fluctuations in interest rate in either the current or the
preceding year
27. Trade and other receivables
GROUP COMPANY
Restated
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Trade receivables 658 9 457 8 233 242
Amounts due under long term contracts (note
28) 11.6 - - -
Unbilled revenue 703.8 6124 - -
Amounts owed by parent company - - - 1302
Amounts owed by other group companies 251.4 2113 1,770.8 4392
Corporation tax {group payments) - - 179.8 194 5
Other debtors 56.9 802 204 181
Pension reimbursement rnghts asset (note 43) 124 - - -
1,695.0 1,361 7 1,994 3 806 2

The majonty of trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 60 day terms Interest Is
apphed to major accounts when the accounts become overdue For further information relating to related
party recewvables, refer to note 44 Included in the value of other debtors for the Group, 15 £13 7m relating to
value added taxation (*VAT"} (2005 £11 7m hability included within trade and other payables) The VAT
receivable and payable 1s remitted to the appropnate tax body on a quarterly basis The Directors consider

that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates therr fair value

Included within trade recevables 1s a provision for doubtful debts of £74 2m (2005 £67 3m) in the Group,

and £0 2m n the Company (2005 £0 1m)
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GROUP
Restated
2006 2005
£m £m
Contracts in progress at balance sheet date
Amounts due from contract customers included
in trade and other receivables 11.6 -
Amounts due te contract customers included in
trade and other payables {51.8) (39 8)
{40.2) (39 8)
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits
less recognised losses to date 391.9 2659
Less progress billings (432.1) (305 7)
{40.2) (39 8)

There are a number of long term contracts within the Group The Powerlink contract which ends in 2028 1s
part of a private finance initative ("PFI") consortium includes the refurbishment of the legacy infrastructure
assets for London Underground The Allenby contract 1s a PFI electrical infrastructure contract with the
Minustry of Defence, ending in 2041 The Metronet Alliance contract forms part of the overall Metronet public
private partnership (*PPP”} contract with London Underground (see note 22), and will fimsh in 2009 Inflation
rate nisk anses from these long term contracts hecause revenue streams are generally based on the retall
price index, but costs generally nse based on the construction price index

Revenue under long term contracts amounted to £160 1m in 2006, and £66 2m n 2005

There are no such long term contracts within the Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

29. Cash and cash equivalents

GROUP COMPANY
20086 2005 2006 2005
Em £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 1009 128 8 - -
Short-term deposits 654 373 - 86
166 3 166 1 - 86

Cash at bank and 1n hand earns interest at floating rates based on dailly bank deposit rates Short term
deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates The farr value
of cash and cash equivalents 1s £166 3 m (2005 £166 1m)

At 31 December 2006, the Group had available £460 Om (2005 £610 0m) of undrawn committed borrowing
facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met

For the purpose of the cash flow statement the cash and cash equivalents are

GROUP COMPANY
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and i hand 1009 128 8 - -
Bank overdrafts - - {514.4) (24 3)
Short-term deposits 65.4 373 - 86
Cash and equivalents as restated 166 3 166 1 (514.4) {(157)

The Group cash balance includes £50 8m (2005 £38 7m) of cash which must be maintained as a minimum
cash balance ih some entities, 1n accordance with contractual obligations with financial institutions There
were no restrictions in place over the Company's cash balances in 2006 or 2005, and amounts owed, shown
above, are repayable on demand
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30. Other liabilities

GROUP COMPANY
Restated .
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £Em

Trade creditors 8991 7138 574.5 526 6
Amounts due under long term contracts (note
28) 51.8 g8 - -
Other payables 632.2 538 9 36.2 32
Deferred iIncome due within one year 41.1 42 2 - -
Interest payable 76.6 829 3.5 29
Amount owed to intermediate parent
companies - 14 4 - 144
Amounts owed to other Group companies - - 713.0 3999
Other habilities - current 1,700.8 1,432 0 1,327.2 947 0
Deferred income — non current 1,202.3 1,100 9 - -
Total other iabilities 2,903.1 25329 - -

For further information regarding related party payables refer note 44

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms, with the exception of
energy purchases which are usually settled on market terms within 14 days Other payables are non-interest
bearing and have an average term of 60 days, with the exception of deferred income Deferred income
includes the consumer contributions towards distribution network assets which are credited to the income
statement over the hives of the distnibution network assets to which they relate
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31 Interest bearing loans and borrowings
GROUP COMPANY
2006 2005 2006 2005

Current £m £m £m £m
Other loans
Short term borrowing 1,281.6 824 4 1,195.3 646 5
Bank overdraft - - 514.4 24 3
$200m 8 75% Bonds due August 2006 - 1180 - -
£100m 8 875% Bonds due September 2006 - 1020 - -
Sutton Bridge Bonds due June 2022 (1) 26.8 223 - -
PADCO loan () 58.1 616 - -
Other - 51 - -
Secuntisation {m) 340.0 3400 - -

1,706.5 1,473 4 1,709.7 6708
Non-current
Other loans
€500m 4 375% Eurobond due December 2010 336.9 3436 336.9 3436
£200m 8 75% Eurobond due March 2012 221.0 2250 - -
Sutton Bnidge Bonds due June 2022 (1) 195.9 2294 - -
£50m Index Linked Bond due June 2023 550 536 - -
£300m 5 75% Bonds due 2024 3488 348 8 - -
£200m 8 5% Eurobond due March 2025 2559 2590 - -
£300m 5 5% Eurcobond due June 2026 296.9 2967 - -
£300m 6 125% Bonds due June 2027 3056 3059 - -
£150m 3 125% Index Linked Bonds due June 167 2 1630
2032 - -
Other 15.9 - - -

2,199 1 22250 336.9 3436
Total interest beanng loans and borrowings 3,9056 36984 2,046.6 1,014 4

o

The secured bonds which are guaranteed by Sutton Bridge Power Limited comprse two
tranches of twenty five year amortising bonds 1ssued by Sutton Bridge Financing Limited The
first tranche comprises a remaining principal of £139 3m (2005 £150 5m) at a fixed interest rate
of §625 % The second tranche compnses a remaining principal amount of US$107 2m (2005
$120 0m) at a fixed interest rate of 797% The Group has entered Into currency swap
arrangements in order to convert the principal and interest payment on the bonds into sterling for
periods up to matunty The bonds are secured by means of fixed and floating charges over
substantially all the net assets of Sutton Bridge and at all tmes rank pan passu and without
preference among themselves The Sutton Bridge bonds mature in June 2022 but principal
repayments commenced from June 2002 Principal and interest payments are made semi-
annually in arrears on the bonds on 30 June and 31 December
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31. Interest bearing loans and other borrowings continued

(n) The PADCO loan of £58 1m (2005 £61 6m) relates to EDF Energy plc's share of PADCO's
drawn down loan facilities relating to PADCO construction contracts Loan facilities of £105m
and £18m were entered into on 13 August 1998, secured by fixed and floating charges over
PADCO’s assets PADCO has commenced repayment by quarterly instalments [nterest
charged on the loans has been fixed to matunty under swap transaction arrangements at an
interest rate of 6 0% per annum for the £105m facility and at an average of 5 4% for the £18m
faciity

{mn) The Group has entered into a commercial paper secuntisation programme involving the sale of
unbilled and billed trade debtors to a trust Interest 1s charged on trade debtors secuntised at a
margin above LIBOR The total facility available 1s £350m, and amounts are repayable within 12
months of the secuntisation of the associated debtor balance

32. Derivative financial instruments

The Group has entered into a variety of financial instruments to mitigate its exposure to commeodity price,
interest rate, foreign currency and credit rate nsk A financial instrument s defined in 1AS 32 as any contract
that gives nse to a financial asset of one entity and a financial hability or equity instrument of another entity

The Group's financial nsk management objectives and policies are detalled below They can be splt inte two
main areas, competitive nsk and the risks ansing as a result of the Group’s use of financial instruments A
discussion of the nisks together with a summary of the Group’s approach to managing those risks 1s as
follows The accounting basis for dealing with these nisks Is discussed in the accounting policy section below
The accounting treatment for financial instruments entered into as a result of these policies 1s detalled in note
2

Margmn risk

Margin price nisk anses from forecast customer demand for gas, coal and electrnicity Due to the vertically
integrated nature of the Group the electricity procured from the generation business provides a natural
hedge for the electricity demand from the retail business Any residual exposure to movements m the price of
electricity, gas or coal 1s mitigated by entering into contracts and hedging options on the forward markets
Risk of loss 1s monitored through establishment of approved counterparties and maximum counterparty iimits
and mimimum credit ratings  Margin risk also anses from the requirement to purchase EU carbon emissions
certificates

interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings and deposits 1S managed principally
through the use of fixed rate debt instruments and swap agreements The Group's policy I1s to use dervatives
to reduce exposure to short term interest rates and not for speculative purposes

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s present exposure to foreign currency nsk 1s imited to the currency exposure on the service of
interest and capital on US dollar and Euro denominated debt, and the purchase of energy and EU emissions
cerlificates The Group policy i1s to hedgeffix known currency exposures as they arise The US Dollar and
Euro currency swap agreements fix the Sterling equivalent that will be required to service the interest and
capital repayments of foreign currency debt instruments The Group enters into forward currency purchase
contracts to fix the Sterling price for future foreign currency denominated transactions

Credit risk

The Group's credit sk 15 pnimanly attrnibutable to its trade receivables and amounts recoverable under long
term contracts The credit nsk on hguid funds and dernvative financial instruments 1s imited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies

The Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over a large number of
external counterparties and customers Due to the nature of the Group's trading with other EDF Group
companies In Europe, there are large trading balances with other Group companies, however these are not
considered to be a nsk because of parent company financial support

58




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

32 Derivative financial instruments continued

Fair values of assets and liabilities
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

Set out below I1s a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all of the Group’s dervative
and other financial instruments The categories of financial instruments have been determined with reference
to the nature of the financial instruments and the nisks to which they relate

GROUP 2006 2005

Book value  Fair value Book value Farr value

Em £m £m £m
Floating rate borrowings 2,180.0 2,263.1 1,7353 17857
Fixed rate borrowings 2,061.8 21743 23123 2,573 4
Total borrowings 4,241.8 4,437.4 40476 4,359 1
Commodity denvative contracts — assets (i) {303.4) {303.4) (569 0) (569 0)
Foreign currency derivatives — assets () {37.8) {37.8) (49) (49)
Interest rate derivatives — assets (i} (0.9) {0.9) - -
Total assets (342.1) {342.1) (573 9) (573 9)
Commodity denvative contracts ~- hiabilities (1) 1,091.8 1,091.8 1280 1280
Interest rate derivatives — iabiibies (n} 66 6.6 72 72
Foreign currency derivatives — iabalties {ur) 69.5 69.5 353 353
Total habihties 1,167.9 1,167.9 1705 1705
Net financial instruments and commodities 825.8 825.8 {403 4) {403 4)
Total 5,067.6 5,263.2 36442 39557

The total borrowings In the above table, includes interest bearing habilities and finance lease habilities
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32. Derivative financial instruments continued

COMPANY 2006 2005

Book value  Fair value Book value Farr value

£m £m £m £m
Floating rate borrowings 1,709.7 1,709.7 6708 6708
Fixed rate borrowings 336.9 348.7 3436 3591
Total borrowings 2,046.6 2,058.4 1,014 4 1,029 9
Commodity derivative contracts — assets (1) {303.4) (303.4) (569 O (569 0)
Foreign currency derivatives — assets (1) (37.8) {37.8) {49 {49
Total assets (341.2) {341.2) (573 9) (573 9)
Commodity denvative contracts — llabihities (1) 1,091.8 1,091.8 128 0 1280
Foreign currency denvatives — habihties () 41.8 418 - -
Total habilibhes 1,133.6 1,133.6 128 0 128 0
Net financial instruments and commodities 7924 7924 (445 9) (445 9)
Total 2,839.0 2,850.8 568 5 584 0
{n These amounts include contracts which qualify as cash flow hedges under IAS39 and contracts
which are carried at fair value through the income statement

(1) Interest rate denvatives are accounted for as cash flow hedges
{m) Foreign currency denvatives comprise forward foreign exchange contracts and swaps on foreign

currency bonds Forward currency contracts are either carred at far value through the income
statement, or designated as farr value hedges The swap instruments qualfy for designation as
cash flow hedges under IAS39

These amounts represent the net carrying and farr values of financial instruments Financial instruments are
disclosed gross as denvative and other financial instruments, obligations under finance leases and interest-
beanng liabiities on the Group balance sheet Commodity denvative contracts include contracts related to
the purchase of power, ceal, gas, gas oll, fuel o1l and EU carbon emissions certficates

The Group enters into contracts for the purchase of power, gas, coal and emissions allowances as well as

interest rate and foreign exchange derivatives As described in the accounting policy note, some of these
contracts are designated as cash flow hedges and as far value hedges
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32. Derivative financial instruments continued

The contracted commitments of all denvative commodity trades, ocutstanding at 31 December were

At 31 At 31

December  December

2006 2005

GROUP Total Total

Em £m
Commodity dernivative contracts 3,513.9 1,736 9
Foreign exchange denvatives 2,312 4 563 3
Interest rate derivatives 63.2 84
Total 5,889.5 2,3086

Included within the table above are commitments of £2,969 8m (2005 £1,345 2m} which will mature within
one year

At 31 At 31

December  December

2006 2005

COMPANY Total Total
£m £m

Energy denvatives 3,513.9 1,736 9
Foreign exchange dervatives 250 2 3470
Total 3,764.1 2,0839

Included within the table above are commitments of £2,034 0m (2005 £1,198 4m) which will mature within
one year

Assumptions made mn calculating fair value

The Group estimates farr values for the commodity contracts using tradable contract prices quoted in the
active market and using valuation techniques reflecting market views These are then discounted using the
published LIBOR curve for the time value of money and adjusted for counterparty credit nsk

The Group considers that the UK market for commodity contracts including gas and electricity 1s active for up
to two to three years forward, with reliable broker quotes and published prices availlable, therefore in this
active period commodity contracts are valued at forward market prices as at 31 December Outside the active
peniod where ligusdity in the market 1s low, due to the available range of contract quotes imited to seasonal
contracts, a number of interpclation/extrapolation methods are used based on market expectations

Counter-party credit nsk 1s applied to cover the nsk of default by indwidual counterparties and the financial
benefits of contracts Credit ratings used are based on Standard & Poors and Moody's published figures and
applied to the net position by counterparty where the Group has a legal nght and practice of net settlement
The majonty of significant exposures are with A-rated counterparties or better
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32. Derivative financial instruments continued

The main market based drnivers are power, gas and EU emissions trading allowances, which whilst not actively
traded in the peniod, are derived from current future prices and from a long-term forecast The contract

capacity costs have been estimated using the terms of the contract, and the understanding gamned of the
relevant operating costs that will be passed through

Farr values for foreigh exchange denvatives and for interest rate denvatives have been determined with
reference to closing market prices at 31 December The Group has designated certain foreign exchange
denvatives as farr value hedges In each case, the nsk being hedged 1s foreign exchange nsk

The Group has designated certain power, gas and coal derivatives as cash flow hedges of forecast
transactions In each case the risk being hedged 1s commodity price nsk

The maturity analysis of the amounts included in the hedging reserve 1s as follows

GROUP 31 December 31 December

2006 2005

£m £m

Less than one year {540.1) 2504

Between one to two years {215.5) 1357

Between two years and five years (8.1) (11 4)
More than five years (15.0) -

Total (losses)/gains on hedged derivatives (778.7) 3747

Deferred taxation 2336 (115 1)

Total (545 1) 2596

£(107)m (2005 £2 0m) was recycled out of reserves relating to the movement in foreign currency bonds

COMPANY 31 December 31 December
2006 2005
£m £m
Less than one year (540.2) 2381
Between one fo two years {215.6) 1357
Between two years and five years 0.9 412
Total (losses)/gains on hedged denvatives {754.9) 4150
Deferred taxation 226.5 (125 2)
Total {528.4) 2898

£10 3m (2005 £6 7m) was recycled out of reserves relating to the movement in foreign currency bonds in the
Company
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32. Dernvative financial instruments continued

Interest rate profile of financial liabilities
The interest rate profile of financial habilities, subsequent to the effect of interest rate swaps, was as follows
The interest rate profiles for fixed and floating debt were as follows

GROUP COMPANY
2006 2005 2006 2005
Weighted average fixed interest rate % 6.3% 6 8% 5.2% 52%
Weighted average floating interest rate % 5.5% 4 7% 5.5% -
Weighted average period for long-term debt (years) 14.8 yrs 14 3 yrs 1.0 yrs 40 yrs

All foreign currency denominated debt interest and principal payments have been fully swapped into sterling

At 31 December 2006, the Group had four interest rate swaps (2005 two) The farr value of the interest rate
swaps outstanding at 31 December 2006 was a hability of £6 5m (2005 a hability of £7 2m ) The Company
had no interest rate swaps in 2006 (2005 none)

Maturity of borrowings
The Group's matunty of debt, excluding finance lease obligations, at 31 December was as follows

GROUP CCMPANY
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
In one year or less or on demand 1,706 5 1,473 4 1,709.7 6708
In more than one year but not more than two years - - - -
In more than two years but not more than five years 410.2 3436 336.9 3436
In more than five years 1,788 9 1,881 4 - -
Total 3,905.6 3,698 4 2,046.6 1,014 4

At the balance sheet date, the total principal amount of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts for
which the Group and the Company had contracted was as follows

2006 2005

£m £m

US Dollar forward purchase agreements 501.2 177 1
Euro forward purchase agreements 274.0 2386
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The movements in provistons dunng the current year are as follows
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GROUP At1 Janvary Utiised in Released In Ansing  Unwinding At 31
20086 the year the year dunngthe ofdiscount December
year 2006
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Medway power contract 920 (25 0) - - - 670
Obligations under EU
emissions 64 5 {63 2) (13) 158 2 - 158.2
Teesside power contract 320 (14 4) - - - 17.6
Insurance 301 295 37 41 - 28.0
Decommissioning 219 - - - 25 244
Legal disputes 61 07) (0 4) 25 - 7.5
Cnerous lease contracts 50 (06) - - - 4.4
Restructuning costs 134 (6 3) 61 - - 1.0
Rectification costs - - - 37 - 3.7
Other costs 11 - - 03 - 14
266.1 {112.7) {11.5) 168.8 2.5 313.2
The provisions have been split as follows
At 31 December 2006 At 31 December 2005
GROUP Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
Current Current
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Medway power contract 22.0 450 67.0 255 665 920
Obhgations under EU
emiIssions 158 2 - 158.2 64 5 - 64 5
Teesside power contract 14.2 34 176 14 2 178 320
Insurance 280 - 28.0 301 - 301
Decommissioning - 244 24.4 - 219 219
Legal disputes 75 - 7.5 61 - 61
Onerous lease contracts 18 26 4.4 05 - 05
Restructuring costs 10 - 1.0 134 - 134
Rectification costs 37 - 3.7 - 45 45
Other costs 14 - 14 11 - 11
237.8 754 313.2 155 4 1107 266 1
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33. Provisions for liabilities continued

COMPANY At 1 January Utlised inthe  Released in Ansing durning At 31 December
2006 year the year the year 2006
£m £m £m £m £m

Onerous lease contracts 50 {06) - - 4.4

Restructuning costs 134 (6 3) (6 1) - 1.0

Legal disputes 05 (03) (0 2) - -

Insurance 03 - - - 0.3

Other costs 13 - - - 1.3

Obhgations under EU

emissions - - - 81 8.1
205 {7.2) (6.3) 8.1 151

The provisions have been spht as follows

At 31 December 2006 At 31 December 2005

COMPANY Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
Current Current

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Onerous lease contracts 1.8 2.6 4.4 05 45 50
Restructuring casts 1.0 - 1.0 134 - 134
Legal disputes - - - 05 - 05
Insurance 03 - 0.3 03 - 03
Other costs 1.3 - 1.3 13 - 13
Obhgations under EU 8.1 - 8.1 - - -
emissions

1258 26 154 160 45 205

The Teesside power provision arose on the acquisition of the supply business of South Western Electricity
The Medway power contract provisions resulted from the acquisiion of SEEBOARD These provisions
represent the difference between the contract prnice and the estimated market price of energy at the date of
acquisition The discount rate used in arnving at the provisions was a nsk adjusted rate The Teesside
provision will unwind by end of 2008, and the Medway provision will unwind by the end of 2010.

The provisions for obhigations under EU emissions represents the additional certificates required to cover the
Group’s carbon emissions in excess of the free allocation of certificates It 1s expected that this provision will
be utilised in 2007 because the Group 1s required to provide carbon certificates on an annual basis

The insurance provision 1S based on an assessment of the Group's known habilities as at 31 December
2006 The provision is calculated by the Group’s captive insurers, using vanous assumptions and 1s to cover
the Group’s estimated exposure on vanous motor, personal or claims against the networks business The
provision I1s expected to be utilised within one year based on claim history

The decommissioning provision 1s to provide for the future costs of decommissioning Cottam, West Burton
and Sutton Bridge power stations This prowision has been calculated on a discounted basis with the
discount unwound over the remamning period to decommussioning, between 2020 and 2030

The legal disputes provision refates to costs expected to be paid out under a number of ongoing legal cases

Any uncertainties within the cases have been considered in the calculation of the provision These cases are
all expected to be settled during 2007
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33. Provisions for liabilities continued

The provision for onerous lease contracts represents the difference between the projected rental income
from vanous properties and the amounts payable by the Group for these properties under currently existing
contracts These are expected to be utiised between 2007 and 2014

The restructuring provision covers the costs of severance related to restructuning announced before 31
December 2006 The provision is expected to be utilised in 2007 Where individual redundancy packages
have not yet been agreed, a provision has been created based on the range offered

The rectification provision covers the additional cost of work to be carmed cut in order to fulfil contractual
obligations for contracts which have been completed This provision will be released in 2007

34. Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilihes and assets recognised by the Group and movements
thereon durnng the current and pnor reporting period

GROUP Retirement Farr value
Accelerated tax Tax benefit of denvative

depreciaton  losses obligatons  instruments Other Total

£m £m £m £m £m Em

At 1 January 2005 9139 {53) (103 5) {18) (44 7) 758 6

Charge to iIncome 206 53 90 - 365 714

Charge to equity - - - 1169 - 116 9

At 1 January 2006 934.5 - (94.5) 115.1 (8 2) 946.9

Charge to income 458 226 (19 0) 07 501

Credit to equity - - - (348 7) - (348 7)

Ansing on acquisition - - {15) - - {(15)

Reclassification - - - 107 (107) -

At 31 December 2006 980.3 - (73.4) {241.9) (18.2) 646.8

COMPANY Accelerated Retirement  Fair value of
tax benefit denvative

depreciation obligations  instruments Other Total

£m fm £m £m £m
At 1 January 2005 113 (52) 55 (11 0) 0.6
Charge to income {4 8) 06 - 169 12.7
Charge to equity - - 1197 - 119.7
At 1 January 2006 65 {4 6) 1252 59 133.0
Credit to iIncome (2 8) {0 5} (190 49 (27.2)
Credit to equity - - (350 6) - (350.6)
At 31 December 2006 3.7 (5.1) {244.4) 1.0 (244.8)

See note 14 for an analysis of the charge in the year and pnor year
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34. Deferred tax continued

Certain deferred tax assets and habiities have been offset The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes,

GROUP COMPANY
2006 2005 2005 2005
£m £m £m £m
Deferred tax assets {333.5) (213 3) {250.6) (12 4)
Deferred tax liabilities 980.3 1,160 2 5.8 145 4
At 31 December 646.8 946 9 (244.8) 1330

At the balance sl{eet date, the Group had no unused tax losses (2005 £nil) available for offset against future
profits

35. Minority interest

GROUP

£m

At 1 January 2006 2.2
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 02
Additions 01
At 31 December 2006 2.5

The minonty interest anses from the Group's holdings in EDF Energy Powerlink Limited and Londen ESCO
Limited The Group holds 80% of the shares in EDF Energy Powerlink Limited, with the other remaining 20%
being held by Balfour Beatty plc and ABB Investments Limited The Group invested an 81% stake in London
ESCOQO Limited during the year with the remaining stake being held by the London Development Agency

36. Commitments

Capital and other commitments

At 31 December 2008, the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment amounting to £191 Om (2005 £137 5m) The Company had not entered into any
contractual commitments for the purchase of property, plant and equipment (2005 £nil )

At 31 December, the Group and the Company had contracted to purchase power and gas under power
purchase agreements {PPAs) fo the value of £1,193 7m (2005 £ 947 4m) and contracts for the purchase of
fuel of £141 5m (2005 £304 Om)
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Operating lease cormmitments

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows

2006 2005
GROUP £m £m
Within one year 24.0 258
After one year but not more than five
years 87.0 87 4
More than five years 1941 1950
Future lease charges 305.1 308 2

2006 2005
COMPANY £m £m
Within one year 11.9 116
After one year but not more than five
years 40.6 408
More than five years 68.1 57 4
Future lease charges 120 6 109 8

Finance lease commitments

The Group has finance leases for vanous items of property, plant and machinery Future mimmum lease
payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net mmimum lease payments are as
follows

Present value of minimum

Mimmum lease payments lease payments
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 339 335 12.5 115
After one year but not more than five
years 143.7 1409 67.8 616
More than five years 340.0 3768 255.9 276 1
517.6 5512 336.2 349 2
Less Future finance charges (181.4) (202 Q) N/A N/A
Minimum lease payments 336.2 3492

The Group’s finance lease commitments relate to the Coftam power station under a finance lease with
another company within the EDF SA group The term of the lease 1s 14 years and has an effective interest
rate of 6 4% based on LIBOR rates Repayments under the lease are re-calculated quarterly and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments The lease 1s denominated In sterling
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Financing commitments

The Group has committed to provide its share of further equity funding and subordinated debt to joint
ventures and associates In respect of public finance intiative (*PFI") projects These commitments totalled
£156 9m at 31 December 2006 (2005 £105 1m)

37. Contingent habilities

The Company and certain subsidiary companies have given guarantees in respect of bonds relating to the
Group’s own contracts, and have given guarantees in respect of the Group's share of contractual obligations
of associates and joint ventures

The Group has given a joint and several guarantee of Metronet Alhance's obligations under its contracts with
Metronet BCV and SSL  Under the terms of the contract, EDF Energy’s maximum share of Metronet
Alhance's obligations would be £117 2m, unless Metronet Aliance terminated the Metronet BCV and SSL
contract In this instance, EDF Energy would additionally be hable for any price differential incurred by
Metronet BCV and SSL n arranging completion of the work, capped at the price contracted with Metronet
Alliance A similar guarantee has been given relating to EDF Energy Contracting Limited's obligations under
contract to Metronet BCV and SSL which has also been limited to a maximum of £44m except in the case of
abandonment of the contract by EDF Energy (Contracting) Limited

The Group has given letters of credit to vanous associates, joint ventures The letter of credit granted to
Metronet BCV and SSL was £37 4m (2005 £40 3m) and I1s equal to the additional equity and loans the
Group 15 contractually obliged to contribute

The Group has given guarantees in respect of the construction of certain National Gnd Assets relating to the

Group's future construction of Power Plants A potential hability of £7 7m (2005 £nul} could anse as a result
of these guarantees

38. Share capital

2006 2005 2006 2005
Number Number £m £m
Authorised
Ordinary shares of £0 5833 each 2,228,713,439 2.228,713,439 1,300.0 1,3000
Ordinary shares of £0 50 each 300,000,002 300,000,002 1500 1500
2006 2005 2006 2005
Number Number £m £m
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £0 5833 each 2,222,739,164 2,222,739,164 1,296.6 1,296 6

The Company has one class of ordinary share which carnes no right to fixed income
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Share Capital Redemption
GROUP premium contribution reserve Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2005 139 - 10 24.9
Capital contribution - 106 - 10.6
At 31 December 2005 139 106 110 35.5
At 31 December 2006 13.9 10.6 10 35.5
Share Capital Redemption
COMPANY premium contribution reserve Total
£m £m Em Em
At 1 January 2005 139 - 110 24.9
Capital contribution - 21 - 21
At 31 December 2005 139 21 110 27.0
At 31 December 2006 13.9 2.1 11.0 27.0

The capital contribution in 2005 represented the costs incurred 1n providing the favourable terms to
employees In respect of shares in EDF as part of the iniial public offering 1n 2005, see note 11
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GROUP COMPANY

£m £m

At 1 January 2005 4340 96
Net profit for the year 292 8 1810
Equity dvidends (note 15) {96 0) {96 0)
At 1 January 2006 630.8 94.6
Profit for the year 3419 1057
Equity dividends {note 15) (105 0) {105 Q)
At 31 December 2006 867.7 95.3

4. Hedging reserve
GROUP COMPANY

£m £m

At 1 January 2005 (4.4) 12.9
Net gains on items n cash flow hedge 3809 396.6
Deferred taxation on net gains in cash flow hedge {116 9) {119.7)
At 1 January 2006 2596 289.8
Net losses on items in cash flow hedge (1,183 4) (1,168.8)
Deferred taxation on net losses i cash flow hedge 348 7 350.6
At 31 December 2006 {545.1) {528.4)

The hedging reserve represents the commaodity price and foreign exchange movements on hedged contracts

that are classified as cash flow hedges
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42. Notes to the cash flow statement
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GROUP COMPANY
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m

Profit befare taxation 420.8 424 0 54.7 (52 8)
Adjustments for
Loss/(gamn) on dernvatives 62.9 (35 4) 62.9 (35 4)
Depreciation 276.8 27158 98 80
Other gains and losses (3.4) - {0.6) -
Amortisation of intangible assets 214 187 4.7 182
Finance cost 199.9 2038 6.2 (18)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (22.7) (35 8) (20.1) (28 9)
Increase/(decrease) In provisions (48 2) 212 {5.4) (18)
(Decrease}/increase in post employment benefits (18 2) 39 0.3 26
IFRS 2 share costs - 106 - 21
Amortisation of customer contnbutions (37.4) (32 8) - -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 851.9 B497 112.5 (89 8)
Increase In inventones (127.4) (24 8) (104 8) (26 6)
Increase in receivables (324.2) (312 9} (1,206.6) (99 5)
Increase in payables 282.9 1617 284.3 2076
Cash generated by operations 683.2 663 7 {914 6) (8 3)
Pension deficit payment (48 6) (34 4) (2 6) (16)
Income taxes recewed/(paid) 66 (105 5} 87 (74 2)
Net cash from operating activities 641.2 523 8 (908 5) (84 1)

72




EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

43. Retirement benefit schemes

The principal pension schemes of EDF Energy plc are the EDF Energy Pension Scheme (EEFPS) and the
EDF Energy Group of the Electricity Supply Pension Scheme (ESPS} Both of these schemes are defined
benefit schemes On 1 September 2005 the EDF Energy Group of the ESPS was created by the merger of
the Company's two ESPS Groups, the London Electnicity Group of the ESPS and the SEEBOARD Group of
the ESPS

The London Electricity group and SEEBOARD group of the ESPS closed to new employees in April 1994
and July 1995 respectively New employees were offered membership of the following schemes, the
SEEBOARD final Salary Pension Plan, the London Electricity 1994 Retirement Plan (LERP), the 24seven
Group Personal Pension Plan {(24seven GPP), and the SEEBOARD Pension Investment Plan The first of
these schemes was a defined benefit scheme whilst all the others are defined contribution schemes The
Group closed its non-ESPS pension arrangements with effect from 29 February 2004 A new scheme, the
EDF Energy Pension Scheme, a final salary arrangement, replaced these for future service from 1 March
2004 A special contribution of £2m was made to the EDF Energy Pension Scheme at inception, and the
regular ongoing employer's contribution has been assessed as 10% of pensionable pay This contribution
rate will be reviewed as a result of future actuanal valuations

The majority of employees of EDF Energy Powerlink Limited are members of the LRT Penston Fund which 1s
a defined benefit scheme and 1s operated by Transport for London (*TFL") The TFL pension scheme 1s a
final salary scheme for eligible employees of Transport for London and its operating businesses which
include London Underground EDF Energy Powerlink Limited contributes to the TFL scheme for those
employees who were transferred to EDF Energy Powerlink Limited under the Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment) Regulations, (*TUPE") The TFL pension scheme 1s a multi-employer scheme in
which the assets and labilites relative to each parhcipating employer are separately identfiable
Accordingly, the following disclosures relate only to the section of the scheme attributable to EDF Energy
Powerlink Limited

Included in the Group's trade receivables 1S an amount which represents the reimbursement of the TFL
pension habiity This anses through the contractual obligation that London Underground Limited has with the
Company tc reimburse any payments that are required of the Company to the scheme to fund a scheme
defict that exceed a set annual contnbution of 16 2% of the gross annual salanes of the EDF Energy
Powerlink employees who are members of the scheme

The latest full actuanal valuations of the EDF Energy Group of the ESPS was carried out by Hewitt Bacon &
Woodrow, consulting actuarnes, as at 31 March 2004 The valuation was agreed on 15 December 2004, at
the same time that a special contnbution was agreed to fund the deficit over a 12 year penod from 1 April
2005 The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past
service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method The preliminary results of the latest full
actuanal valuation as at 31 March 2006 of the TFL pension scheme, being carned out by Watson Wyalt,
were used to determine the liability at 31 December 2005 and 2006

The principal financial assumptions used to calculate ESPS liabilities under IAS 19 were

31 December 31 December

2006 2005

% p.a. %pa

Discount rate 5.2 47

Inflation assumption 31 29

Rate of increase in salanes 41 39
Rate of increase of pensions Increases

- full retail pnce indexation (*RPI™) 31 29

- Limited price indexation (“LPI") up to 5% (EEPS - service to 28

31March 2006) 3.1
- LPl up to 2 5% (EEPS - service from 31 March 2006) 23 21
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These assumptions are governed by IAS19 and do not reflect the assumptions used by the independent
actuary in the tnennial valuation as at 31 March 2004, which determined the Group's contribution rate for
future years

The expected return on assets are set based on advice given by the Group's actuaries and reflect the market
expectations of the long term rate of return of assets at the balance sheet date with gilts used as a
benchmark

The principal financial assumptions used to calculate the TFL hability under IAS 19 were as follows,

31 December

2006

% p a.

Discount rate 51
Inflation assurnption 31
Rate of increase n salares 46
Rate of increase of pensions increases RPI 31

These assumptions are governed by IAS 19, and do not reflect the assumptions used by the independent
actuary in the tnennial valuatron as at 31 March 2003, which determined the Powerlink contribution rate for
future years

When an individual ceases to be an active member of the EDF section of the TFL pension scheme, the
oblgation to provide the pension benefits is transferred from the EDF section of the scheme, to a public
sector section of the scheme At the same time, there 1s an associated transfer of assets from the EDF
section to the public sector section The defined benefit obligations of the EDF section of the TFL pension
scheme have been measured under IAS 19 using the assumptions in the above table for the penod prior to
the transfer of obligations, and the actual assumptions used to determine the assets transferred at the point
of the transfer of obligations
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The amount recognised In the balance sheet in respect of the Group’s defined benefit retirement benefit plan
1$ as follows

GROUP ESPS EEPS TFL Total Total
2006 2006 2006 2006 2005

£m Em fm £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obligations (2,639 8) (82 0) {436) (2,7654) (2,6315)
Farr value of scheme assets 2,342 0 680 268 2,437.8 22200
Deficit in scheme (297 8) (13 0) {16 8) {327.6) (411 5)
Unrecognised actuanal losses 660 - 44 70.4 97 0
Liability recognised in the balance sheet (231 8) (13 0) (12 4) {257.2) (314 5)

This amount 1s presented in pension liabilittes The TFL amount I1s recoverable from LUL and 1s shown In
note 27

The Company has an employee benefits reimbursement nght asset connected to the TFL pension scheme
This anses through the contractual obligation that London Underground Limited has with the Company to
reimburse any payments that are required of the Company by the scheme that exceed a set annual
contnbution of 16 2% of the gross annual salanes of the EDF Energy Powerlink employees who are
members of the scheme

Amounts recognised in expenses In respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows

ESPS EEPS TFL Total Total

GROUP 2006 2006 2006 2006 2005

£m £Em £m £m £m
Current service cost 360 210 20 59.0 430
Interest cost 1190 30 04 122.4 1210
Expected return on scheme assets {146 0) (30) - {149.0) {133 0)
Actuanal losses 10 - - 1.0 20
Commutation credit ansing on change in -
pension scheme rules (8 0) - (9.0) -
Shortfall in respect of transfers in - - - - B0
Changes arising on curtailiments/settlements 25 - - 2.5 60
Pension Levy {0 2) - - (0 2) -
Total operating cost 33 210 24 26.7 470

Of the charge for the year £53 3m (2005 - £59 2m) has been included In personnel costs and an income of
£26 6m (2005 - £12 Om) has been included in interest The movement in the pension deficit during the year
was less than the 10% corndor and has not been recognised in the income statement The amount of the
unrecognised loss In 2006 was £70 4m (2005 £97 0m)

The costs of the TFL pension have all been recharged to London Underground Livited through the pénsnon
retmbursement nghts asset (see note 27) and hence have no net impact on the profit and loss account
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Movements n the present value of defined obligations in the current period were as follows

Total
ESPS EEPS TFL Total 2005
2006 2006 2006 2006
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2,569 5 620 412 2,672.7 2,3030
Service cost 360 210 20 590 430
Changes arising on curtalments/settlements 25 - - 25 60
Interest cost 1190 30 04 1224 1210
Actuarnial loss / (gan) 40 (100} - (6.0) 2380
Obhgation on transfers in (30) - - (3.0) 80
Commutation credit arising on change In
pension scheme rules (90) - - (9.0) -
Bulk transfers in 180 - - 18.0 -
Pension Levy (02) - - (0.2) -
Benefits paid (97 0} 60 - (91 0) (87 5)
At 31 December 26398 820 436 2,765.4 26315
Movements in the present value of farr value of scheme assets in the current period were as follows
ESPS EEPS TFL Total Total
2006 2006 2006 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2,174 0 46 0 228 2,242 8 1,8750
Expected return on scheme assets 146 0 30 - 149.0 1330
Actuarnal gains and losses 220 10 22 25.2 2220
Contributions by employer 790 130 18 93.8 775
Bulk transfers in 180 - - 18.0 -
Benefits paid {97 0) 60 - {91.0) (87 5)
At 31 December 2,342 0 690 268 2,437.8 2,2200

The analysis of the scheme assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date were as follows

Expected return

Fair value of assets

ESPS ESPS

EEPS TFL EEPS ESPS EEPS TFL Total

2006 2006 2005 2006 2006 2006 2005

% % % Em Em Em £m
Gilts 4.5 - 41 935.0 - - 4430
Equities 82 82 78 1,136.0 35.0 15.5 1,518 0
Property 7.2 - 68 64.0 - - 580
Corporate bonds 5.0 4.7 45 161.0 34.0 8.9 1790
Cash 5.2 - 46 46 0 - - 220
Other - 4.6 - - - 24 -
2,342.0 69.0 26.8 2,2200
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The history of expenence adjustments is as follows

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

ESPS EEPS TFL Total Total Total
2006 2006 2006 2006 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit (2,639 8) {82 Q) (436) (2,765.4) (2,6315) (2,3030)
obligations
Fair value of scheme assets 23420 69 0 268 2,437.8 22200 1,8750
Deficit in the scheme (297 8) {130) (16 8) (327 6) {411 5) (428 0)
Experence adjustments on scheme 40 (10 0) - (6.0) (238 0) (125 0)
habihties
Percentage of scheme lhabilities (%) 02% {12 2%) - (0.2%) 9 0% 54%
Expernence adjustments on scheme 220 10 2.2 25.2 2220 420
assets
Percentage of scheme assets (%) 0 9% 14% 82% 1.0% 10 0% 22%

The estimated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the scheme dunng the current financial year 1s

£89m

In addition to the pension provision recognised, there i1s an additional amount of £5 4m (2005 £5 8m)
included within trade and other payables (note 30) which relates to the unfunded pension scheme amounts

Pension disclosures relating to the Company are as follows

ESPS EEPS Total Total

2006 2006 2006 2005

£m £m Em £m

Present value of defined benefit obligations (133 8) (30 4) (164.2) {151 3)
Farr value of scheme assets 118 2 270 145.2 123 4
Deficit in scheme (15 6) (3 4) (19.0) (27 9)
Unrecognised actuanal losses 08 11 1.9 86
Liability recognised in the balance sheet (14 8) (2 3) (17.1) (19 4)

This amount i1s presented in non-current habilities

77




EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

43. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Amounts recognised In expenses in respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows

ESPS EEPS Total Total
2006 2006 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m

Current service cost 56 35 9.1 35
Interest cost 57 13 7.0 67
Expected return on scheme assets 69) {13) (8.2) {7 3)
Actuanal losses 10 - 10 10
Shortfall in respect of transfers in (15) - {1.5) 15
Changes ansing on curtallments/settliements 24 - 24 04
Commutation credit ansing on change m
pension scheme rules (10) - {1.0) -
Total operating cost 53 35 8.8 58

Of the charge for the year £7 6m (2005 £6 4m) has been included in personnel costs and an income of

£12m (2005 £0 6m) has been included in interest

Movements in the present value of defined obligations in the current period were as follows

ESPS EEPS Total Total

2006 2006 2006 2005

£m Em £Em £m

At 1 January 124 1 27 2 151.3 122 2

Service cost 56 35 9.1 35

Interest cost 57 13 7.0 67

Actuarial gains and losses 01 {4 3) (4.2) 182

Obligation on transfers in (0 5) - (0.5) 15

Bulk transfers in 21 - 2.1 04
Benefits (received)/ paid {47) 27 (2.0) -

Changes ansing on curtailments/settlements 24 - 24 04

Deficit payments - - - (16)

Commutation credst ansing on change In

pension scheme rules (10 - (1.0) -

At 31 December 133 8 304 164.2 1513

Movements In the present value of fair value of scheme assets in the current penod were as follows

ESPS EEPS Total Total

2008 2006 2006 2005

£m £m £m £m

At 1 January 102 4 200 123.4 100 9

Expected return on scheme assets 69 13 8.2 73

Actuanal gains and losses 11 04 1.5 115
Bulk transfers in 21 - 2.1 -

Contnbutions by employer 68 26 9.4 33

Benefits (recewved)/paid 47 27 (2.0) 04
Deficit payments 26 - 26 -

At 31 December 118 2 27 0 145.2 1234
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43. Retirement benefit schemes continued

The analysis of the scheme assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date was as follows

Expected return Fair value of assets
2006 2005 ESPS EEPS 2005
% % 2006 2006
£m £m £m

Gilts 4.5 45 47.2 - 211

Equities 8.2 82 57.3 13.7 811
Property 7.2 72 3.3 - 28
Corporate bonds 5.0 50 8.1 133 174
Cash 5.2 50 2.3 - 10
118.2 27.0 1234

The history of expenence adjustments 1s as follows

ESPS EEPS Total Total

2006 2006 2006 2005

£m £m £m £m

Present value of defined benefit obligations (133 8) (30 4) (164.2) (151 3)

Farr value of scheme assets 118 2 270 145.2 123 4
Deficit in the scheme {15 6) (34) (19.0) (27 9)
Expernence adjustments on scheme habilities 01 {43) (4.2) (18 2)
Percentage of scheme liabilities (%) (01)% 14 1% 2.6% 12 3%

Experience adjustments on scheme assets 11 04 15 115
Percentage of scheme assets (%) 0 9% 1 5% 1.0% 9 3%

The estimated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the scheme dunng the current financial year 1s
£13 8m

In additton to the pension provision recogrised, there is an addittonal amount of £5 4m (2005 £5 9m) included
within trade and other payables (note 30) which relates to the unapproved pension scheme amounts
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44 Related parties

The following table provides the total amount of transactions which have been entered into with related
parties for the relevant financial year

GROUP Amounts Amounts
Sales to Purchases owed by owed to
related from related related related
parties parties parties parties
£m £m £m £m
Associate 2006 97.1 {85.5) 240 {30.8)
2005 34 (82 0) - {26)
Joint ventures
2006 - - 20 -
2005 - - 21 -

Transactions with other EDF SA
group companies

2006 - (814.9) 102.4 {1,429.0)
20056 - (296 1) 191 (817)
Finance lease commitments with
other EDF SA group companies
2006 - (22.0) - {336 1)
2005 - (11 5) - (349 1)

Details of transactions with the pension scheme are disclosed in note 43

EDF Energy plc trades with other group companies which are part of the Electricité de France SA group

COMPANY Amounts Amounts
Salesto  Purchases owed by owed to
related from related related related
parties partes parties parties
£m £m £m £m
Other EDF Energy plc group
companies
2006 39918 {573.0) 1,770.8 {713.0)
2005 26708 {230 1) 3799 62)
Transactions with other EDF SA
Qroup companies
2006 - {796 1) 1023 {1,414 0)
2005 - (296 2) 191 {79 5)

Sales and purchases from related parties are made at normal market prnces Qutstanding balances at year
end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash There have been no guarantees provided or received for
any related party receivables For the year end the company has not raised any provision for doubtful debts
relating to amounts owed by related parttes (2005 - £Eml) This assessment 1s undertaken each financial year
through examining the financial position of the related party and the market value in which the related party
operates
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44, Related parties continued
The Group and Company enter into dervative contracts at normal market prices with another EDF SA group

company The total value of outstanding contracts reftected at farr value in the Group’ and Company balance
sheet was £453 7m (2005 £324 1m)

Transactions with key management personnel

GROUP and COMPANY 2006 2005
£m £Em
Short term benefits 3.0 25
Compensation for loss of office 0.2 -
Post empleyment benefits 0.8 02
4.0 27

Key management personne! comprise members of the Board and the Executive Committee, a total of eight
individuals at 31 December 2006 (2005 seven) The Executive Committee 1s a cross-branch committee of
senior staff who take part in the decision-making for the Group Duning the year, an additicnal individual was
appointed to the Executive Committee, and one individual was replaced

45, Parent undertaking and controlling party

EDF Energy Group Holdings plc holds a 100% interest n EDF Energy plc and 1s the immediate parent
company

At 31 December 2006, Electricité de France SA a company incorperated in France, 1s the Company's
ultimate parent company and controlling party This 1s the largest and smallest group for which consolidated

accounts are prepared Copies of that company's consolidated accounts may be obtained from Electricité de
France, 22-30 Avenue de Wagram, 75382, Parns, Cedex 08, France
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